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SUMMARY OF THE PROSPECTUS
(ENGLISH LANGUAGE VERSION)

Summaries are made up of disclosure requirements known as elements (the "Elements"”). These
Elements are numbered in sections A — E (A.1 — E.7). This summary contains all the Elements
required to be included in a summary for this type of securities and the issuer. Because some
Elements are not required to be addressed, there may be gaps in the numbering sequence of the
Elements. Even though an Element may be required to be inserted in the summary because of the
type of securities and the issuer, it is possible that no relevant information can be given regarding the
Element. In this case a short description of the Element is included in the summary with the
specification of "Not applicable".

A.

Al

A.2

INTRODUCTION AND WARNINGS

This summary (the "Summary") should be read as an introduction to this Prospectus.

Any decision by an investor to invest in the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] should be based on
consideration of the Prospectus as a whole by the investor.

Where a claim relating to the information contained in this Prospectus is brought before a court,
the plaintiff investor might, under the national legislation of the Member States, have to bear the
costs of translating the Prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated. Civil liability
attaches only to Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft, Budapester Strasse
1, 10787 Berlin, Germany (in its capacity as "Issuer" under the Programme) who tabled the
Summary including any translation thereof, but only if the Summary is misleading, inaccurate or
inconsistent when read together with the other parts of the Prospectus or it does not provide,
when read together with the other parts of the Base Prospecuts, key information.

Consent by the issuer or
person responsible for
drawing up the
prospectus to the use of
the prospectus for
subsequent resale or final
placement of securities
by financial
intermediaries.

Indication of the offer
period within which
subsequent resale or final
placement of securities

by financial
intermediaries can be
made and for which
consent to use the

prospectus is given.

Any other clear and
objective conditions
attached to the consent
which are relevant for the
use of the prospectus.

Notice in bold informing
investors that, in the
event of an offer being
made by a financial
intermediary, this
financial intermediary will

[Subject to the following paragraphs, the Issuer gives its consent to
the use of the Prospectus for subsequent resale or final placement
of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] by financial intermediaries.]

[Not applicable. The Issuer does not give its consent to the use of
the Prospectus for subsequent resale or final placement of the
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe] by financial intermediaries.]

[Not applicable. No consent is given.]

[Resale or final placement of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] by financial
intermediaries can be made and consent to use the Prospectus is
given for the following offer period of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]:
[insert offer period for which consent is given].]

[Not applicable. No consent is given.]

[The following conditions are attached to the consent for the use of
the Prospectus: [insert conditions].]

Information on the terms and conditions of the offer by any
financial intermediary is to be provided at the time of the offer
by the financial intermediary.



B.1

B.2

B.4b

B.5

B.9

B.10

provide information to
investors on the terms
and conditions of the offer
at the time the offer is
made.

ISSUER

The legal and commercial
name of the Issuer:

The domicile and legal
form of the Issuer, the
legislation under which the
Issuer operates and its
country or incorporation:

Any known trends
affecting the Issuer and
the industries in which it
operates:

If the Issuer is part of a
group, a description of the
group and the Issuer’s
position within the group:

Where a profit forecast or
estimate is made, state
the figure:

A description of the nature
of any qualifications in the

audit report on the
historical financial
information:

Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft

Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft ("Berlin
Hyp") is a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) under German law.
Berlin Hyp is authorised to conduct business and to provide services
subject to the Pfandbrief Act (Pfandbriefgesetz). Berlin Hyp is subject
to the comprehensive supervision by the German Central Bank
(Deutsche Bundesbank) and the Federal Financial Supervisory
Authority (Bundesanstalt fir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht).

The global financial crisis has led to an increase in regulatory
activities at national and international levels to adopt new and more
strictly enforce existing regulation for the financial industry in which
the Berlin Hyp operates. Regulatory changes or enforcement
initiatives could further affect the financial industry. Governmental
and central bank action in response to the financial crisis could
significantly affect competition and may affect investors of financial
institutions.

Berlin Hyp has one affiliated active subsidiary — Berlin Hyp
Immobilien GmbH. Berlin Hyp Immobilien GmbH acquires land and
manages it. Furthermore the object of this company is to arrange the
conclusion of contracts on properties and realties, rights equivalent
to real property, business premises, housing or loans or to provide
an opportunity to conclude such contracts as well as any transaction
involved.

Not applicable. Berlin Hyp did not make any profit forecast or
estimate.

Not applicable. The audit reports do not include any qualifications.



B.12  Selected historical key financial information:

Summary form of balance sheet

Assets Liabilities
in Mio. € 2012 2011 | in Mio. € 2012 2011
Claims against banking 2853 3647 | Liabilities to banking institutions 11554 12462
institutions
21458 23009 | Liabilities to customers 7818 8254
Claims against Customers
Securitised liabilities 13275 16108
Debentures and other fixed- 9721 11739
interest securities Subordinated Liabilities 357 358
Residual assets 173* 161*
Fund for general banking risks 41 0
Residual Liabilities 329* 543*
Equity 831 831
Total assets 34205 38556 | Total liabilities 34205 38556
* unaudited information, derived from historical financial information
Summary form of income statement
in Mio. € 2012 2011 Change
Interest Income 857.3 1006.7 -14.8%*
Expenditure 641.8 791.1 -18.9%*
Net Interest Income 215.8 216.3 -0.2%
Net commission Income 11.3 22.2 -49.1%
Net interest Income and commission Income 227.1 238.5 -4.8%
General operating expenditure
a) Staff expenditure 39.2 37.3 5.1%
b)  Other operating expenditure 37.4 28.2 32.6%
c) Depreciations and valuation adjustments 5.9 5.2 13.5%
on intangible investment assets and tangible assets
Operating expenditure 82.5 70.7 16.7%
Other operating revenue / expenditure 5.5 -8.1 -
Risk provisioning 52.6 -29.9 -
Operating result after risk provisioning 202.7 129.8 56.2%
Profits transferred on the basis of the profit transfer agreement 125.8 105.4 19.4%
Net income of the year 0.0 0.0 -
* unaudited information, derived from historical financial information

Summary form of capitalisation

in Mio. €

31 December 2012

31 December 2011

Liabilities to banking institutions
Registered Pfandbriefe issued
Public registered Pfandbriefe issued
Other Liabilities

Liabilities to customers
Registered Pfandbriefe issued
Public registered Pfandbriefe issued
Other Liabilities

11554
306
241

11007

7818
3376
1562
2880

12462
337
318

11808

8254
3587
1551
3116




Securitised Liabilities
Pfandbriefe issued
Public Pfandbriefe issued
Other debentures issued
Prepaid income
Subordinated Liabilities
Profit-sharing rights capital
Fund for general banking risks
Equity
Subscribed capital
Capital reserve
Profit reserves

a) Statutory reserve

b)  Other profit reserves
Balance sheet profit
Trust Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Provisioning reserves
Total Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities
Irrevocable loan commitments

13275 16108
7657 8369
3322 5340
2296 2399

43 67
357 358
0 0
41 0
831 831
753 753
53 53
22 22
0 0

2 2

0 7
176 353
110 116
34205 38556
48 66
957 773

Statement with regard to
no material adverse
change in the prospects of
the issuer since the date
of its last published
audited financial

statements or

description of any material

adverse change:

Description of significant
changes in the financial or
trading position
subsequent to the period
covered by the historical

financial information:

B.13 Description of any recent
events particular to the
Issuer which are to a
material extent relevant to

the evaluation of
Issuer’s solvency:

B.14 Any dependency

other entities within the

group:

B.15 A description of

Issuer’s principal

activities:

B.16 Statement whether

Issuer is directly

indirectly owned

controlled by a third party
and description of the
nature of such control:

As of the date of this Prospectus, there is no material adverse
change in the prospects of Berlin Hyp since the date of the annual
report of Berlin Hyp for the year ended 31 December 2012 which
contains the last audited financial statements of Berlin Hyp on a
consolidated basis.

Not applicable. There has been no significant change in the financial
position of Berlin Hyp since 31 December 2012.

Not Applicable. There are no recent events particular to Berlin Hyp
which are material extend relevant to the evaluation of its solvency.

Berlin Hyp is 100% owned by Landesbank Berlin AG, which in turn is
100% owned by Landesbank Berlin Holding AG which the
Erwerbsgesellschaft der S-Finanzgruppe mbH & Co KG holds the
majority of.

Granting of loans against the provision of long-term mortgages
predominantly commercial as collateral; providing of loans to public
corporations and institutions or against a guarantee by such
corporation and institutions. Issuing of mortgage Pfandbriefe
(Hypothekenpfandbriefe), public sector Pfandbriefe (Offentliche
Pfandbriefe) and unsecured debentures.

Berlin Hyp is 100% owned by Landesbank Berlin AG, which in turn is
100% owned by Landesbank Berlin Holding AG which the
Erwerbsgesellschaft der S-Finanzgruppe mbH & Co KG holds the
majority of. A domination agreement (contract of domination)
between Berlin Hyp and the sole Shareholder Landesbank Berlin AG
has become into effect since 31 August 2012.




B.17

Credit ratings assigned to
an issuer or its debt
securities at the request or
with the cooperation of the
issuer in the rating
process:

NOTES

Description of the type
and the class of the
securities being offered

and/or admitted to
trading, including any
security identification
number:

[[] [Credit rating assigned to the Notes: [insert rating]] [Not

applicable. The Notes are not rated.]

[- The Public Sector Pfandbriefe of Berlin Hyp have been rated AA-

by Fitch and Aal by Moody’s Investors Service Ltd. ("Moody’s").
Obligations rated AA are judged to be of very high credit quality
and denote expections of very low default risk. The modifier "-"
denotes the relative status of the rating within the rating category.
Obligations rated Aal are judged to be of high quality, are subject
to very low credit risk and rank in the higher end of this rating
category.]

The Mortgage Pfandbriefe of Berlin Hyp have been rated AA+ by
Fitch and Aal by Moody’s. Obligations rated AA are judged to be
of very high credit quality and denote expectations of very low
default risk. The modifier "+" denotes the relative status of the
rating within the rating category. Obligations rated Aal are judged
to be of high quality, are subject to a very low credit risk and rank

in the higher end of this rating category.]

[Notes are debt instruments represented by one or more
global note(s). Notes are unsecured debt obligations of the
Issuer.] [Pfandbriefe are debt instruments represented by one
or more global note(s). Pfandbriefe are debt obligations of the
Issuer which are secured by a cover pool of certain eligible
assets.]

[Fixed rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]. Fixed rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] are instruments where the rate of interest does
not change over the term of the instrument.]

[Floating rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]. Floating rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] are instruments which bear interest at a rate of
interest which will be fixed during the term of the instrument.]
[CMS floating rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]. CMS floating rate
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe] are instruments which bear interest at a
rate of interest which will be fixed during the term of the
instrument.]

[Fixed to floating rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]. [Floating to fixed
rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]. [Fixed to floating rate] [Floating to
fixed rate] [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] are instruments which bear
interest at a rate of interest which will be fixed during the term of
the instrument.]

[Inverse/Reverse floating rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe].
Inverse/Reverse floating rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] are
instruments which bear interest at a rate of interest which will be
fixed during the term of the instrument.]

[Zero coupon [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] are instruments which will be
issued on a discounted basis (i.e. under par value) and where
interest is included in the payment of the redemption amount at
maturity.]

[ISIN: [insert]]



C.2

C5

(O]

C.9

Currency of the securities
issue:

Description of any
restrictions on the free
transferability  of  the
securities:

Description of the rights
attached to the securities
(including the ranking and
limitations to those
rights):

Interest:

The nominal interest rate

[Common Code: [insert]]
[German Securities Code (WKN): [insert]]

[Series number: [insert].] [Tranche number: [insert].]
The [Notes] [Pfandbriefen] are issued in [insert currency].

Not applicable. There are no restricions on the free

transferability.

Noteholders have the right of [interest payments at the respective
interest payment date and] payment of capital at the maturity
date.

[In the case of an issue of Notes insert: [in the case of
unsubordinated Notes insert: The obligations under the Notes
constitute unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the
Issuer ranking pari passu (ranking equal) among themselves and
pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated present
and future obligations of the Issuer unless such other obligations
take priority by mandatory provisions of law.] [in the case of
subordinated Notes insert: The obligations under the Notes
constitute unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Issuer
ranking pari passu (ranking equal) among themselves and pari
passu with all other subordinated obligations of the Issuer and, in
the event of the dissolution, liquidation or insolvency or other
proceedings for the avoidance of insolvency of, or against, the
Issuer, such obligations will be subordinated to the claims of all
unsubordinated creditors of the Issuer so that in any such event
no amounts shall be payable under such obligations until the
claims of all unsubordinated creditors of the Issuer shall have
been satisfied in full.]]

[In the case of an issue of Pfandbriefe insert:

The obligations under the Pfandbriefe constitute unsubordinated
obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu among themselves.
The Pfandbriefe are covered in accordance with the Pfandbrief
Act (Pfandbriefgesetz) and rank at least pari passu with all other
unsecured and unsubordinated present and future obligations of
the Issuer under mortgage covered Pfandbriefe
(Hypothekenfandbriefe) or public sector Pfandbriefe (Offentliche
Pfandbriefe), as the case may be.]

[The right of interest payment ends with the due repayment of the
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe].] The right of payment of capital is not
limited and ends with the due payment of capital.

[In the case of fixed rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] insert: Fixed
rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] ("Fixed Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]")
will bear interest at [insert rate of interest] which does not
change over the term of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe].]

[In the case of floating rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] insert:
Floating rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] ("Floating Rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe]") will bear interest on the basis of a reference rate.
The "Reference Rate" is the [EURIBOR®] [LIBOR®]. The interest

10



The date from which
interest becomes payable
and the due dates for
interest

Where the rate is not
fixed, description of the
underlying on which it is
based

rate applicable to the Floating Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] is [one
to one the Reference Rate] [the Reference Rate [plus] [minus] a
margin of [insert margin]] [the Reference Rate multiplied by a
factor of [insert factor].]

[In the case of CMS floating rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] insert:
Floating rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] which are CMS linked ("CMS
Floating Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]") will bear interest on the
basis of a certain base rate ([insert base rate] (the "Base
Rate")). The interest rate applicable to the CMS Floating Rate
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe] is [one to one the Base Rate] [the Base
Rate [plus] [minus] a margin of [insert margin] [the Base Rate
multiplied by a factor of [insert factor] [the Base Rate minus
another Base Rate of [insert other applicable Base Rate]
("CMS Spread")].]

[In the case of fixed to floating or floating to fixed rate
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe] insert: [Fixed to floating rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe]] [Floating to fixed rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]] will
bear interest on the basis of a fixed rate and a floating rate
("[Fixed to Floating Rate] [Floating to Fixed Rate] [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe]"). The fixed rate at [insert rate of interest] will be
payable for the [insert fixed interest period] (the "Fixed
Interest Term"). Prior to or following the Fixed Interest Term the
[Fixed to Floating Rate] [Floating to Fixed Rate] [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] will bear interest on the basis of a reference rate for
the [insert floating interest period] (the "Floating Interest
Term"). The "Reference Rate" is the [EURIBOR®] [LIBOR®].
The interest rate applicable to the Floating Interest Term is [one
to one the Reference Rate] [the Reference Rate [plus] [minus] a
margin of [insert margin]] [the Reference Rate multiplied by a
factor of [insert factor].]

[In the case of inverselreverse floating rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] insert: Inverse/reverse floating rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] ("Inverse/Reverse Floating Rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe]") will bear interest on the basis of the subtraction
of a floating reference rate from [insert fixed rate]. The
"Reference Rate" for the Inverse/Reverse Floating Rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] is the [EURIBOR®] [LIBOR®].

[In the case of zero coupon [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] insert: Zero
coupon [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] ("Zero Coupon [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe]") do not bear interest.]

[Not applicable since the Zero Coupon [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] do
not cater for any regular interest payments.] [Interest starts to
accrue from [insert interest commencement date]. The due
dates for the payment of interest are [insert interest payment
dates] (subject to adjustment).]

[Euro Interbank Offered Rate (EURIBOR®) is a daily interest rate
at which Eurozone banks offer to lend unsecured funds to other
banks for a term of 1, 2 and 3 weeks and on a monthly basis for
a term of 1 month through 12 months.]

[London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR®) is an interest rate at
which banks of the London market offer to lend unsecured funds
to other banks in the London market to be determined on a daily
basis at 11 am London time for a term of 1, 2 and 3 weeks and
on a monthly basis for a term of 1 month through 12 months.]
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C.10

c1

Maturity date and
arrangements  for the
amortisation of the loan,
including the repayment
of procedures

An indication of yield

Name of representative of
debt security holders

If the security has a
derivative component in
the interest payment,
clear and comprehensive
explanation to help
investors understand how
the value of their
investment is affected by
the value of  the
underlying instrument(s),
especially under the
circumstances when the
risks are most evident

Indication as to whether
the securities offered are
or will be the object of an
application for admission
to trading, with a view to
their distribution in a
regulated market or other

[A CMS is a form of an interest swap in which case interest
payments of one swap counterparty are adjusted on a regular
basis to a (long-term) reference rate ([insert swap rate]).
Interest payments of the other swap counterparty refer regularly
to a short term reference rate (6 month EURIBOR®).] [Not
applicable since the interest rate is fixed.] [Not applicable since
the Zero Coupon [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] do not cater for any
regular interest payments.]

The [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] are due for redemption on [insert
maturity date].

At the maturity date, the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] will be redeemed
at [100 per cent of the nominal amount] [insert other amount
with regard to Zero Coupon [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] which may
not be less than 100 % per cent of the nominal amount].
Payment of principal [and interest] in respect of the [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] will be made to the Clearing System or to its order
for credit to the accounts of the relevant accountholders of the
Clearing System.

[insert issue yield] [The issue yield of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]
may not be calculated as of the issue date of the [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] due to the interest rate not being fixed as of such
date.]

[Not applicable.] [Under the Pfandbriefe, no reperesentative of
the holders of the Pfandbriefe may be determined. The German
Bond Act (Gesetz (ber Schuldverschreibungen aus
Gesamtemissionen- "SchVG") is not applicable with regard to
Pfandbriefe.] [In accordance with the German Bond Act (Gesetz
Uber Schuldverschreibungen aus Gesamtemissionen - "SchVG")
the Notes provide that the Holders may by majority resolution
appoint a representative for all Holders (the "Common
Representative"). The responsibilities and functions assigned to
the Common Respresentative appointed by a resolution are
determined in the SchVG and by majority resolutions of the
Holders.]

Not applicable. There is no derivative component in the interest
payment.

[Application was made for admission of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]
on the regulated market of the [insert stock exchange(s)]. First
trading date will be approximately [insert date].]

[Application was made for admission to trading of the [Notes]

[Pfandbriefe] on the unregulated market (Freiverkehr) of the
[insert stock exchange(s)]. First trading date will be
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equivalent markets with
indication of the markets
in question:

C.21 Indication of the market
where the securities will
be traded and for which a
prospectus has been

published:
D. RISKS
D.2
Rating:

Market and Company related
risks:

Counterparty risk:

Market price risk:

approximately [insert date].]

[Application was made for admission of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]
on the regulated market of the [insert stock exchange(s)]. First
trading date will be approximately [insert date].]

[No application was made to admit the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] on a
regulated market of a stock exchange located within the
European Economic Area.]

Key information on the key risks that are specific to the Issuer.
The Bank assumes the existence of functional money and capital
markets. Nevertheless, the effects of still elevated national debt
on the business environment cannot yet be entirely assessed.
Berlin Hyp is subject to different risks within its business
activities. The further inception of the financial markets crisis and
a deterioration of economic conditions could exacerbate the risks
that Berlin Hyp is generally exposed to. The primary risk types
are the following:

A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold Notes
issued under the Programme and may be subject to suspension,
reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating
agency. A suspension, reduction or withdrawal of the rating
assigned to the Notes issued under the Programme may
adversely effect the market price of the Notes issued under the
Programme.

The commercial success of the Bank depends upon the
economic environment and overall economic conditions, in
particular the real estate market. Furthermore, Berlin Hyp as an
issuer of covered bonds, may be exposed to intensified
competition which may have an adverse effect on its financial
condition.

Berlin Hyp is exposed to counterparty risks. Counterparty risk is
the risk of a loss or lost profit as a result of the default of a
business partner. It also includes the risk of a decline in the value
of collateral entrusted to the bank. Although Berlin Hyp regularly
reviews its debtors' creditworthiness and the underlying
collateral, defaults may occur due to unforeseen events or
previously unknown circumstances.

As a mortgage bank, Berlin Hyp assumes market price risks
primarily in the form of interest change risks. Interest change
risks consist of two components. The general risk describes
changes in value resulting from general market movements,
whereas the specific risk is caused by issuer-related factors. The
interest rate risk is managed by using swaps, swaptions,
securities and public sector loans. In addition there was an
increased use of forward rate agreements to control the increase
money market volatility. The Bank does not bear any share price
risks.

It is impossible to rule out the occurrance of incidents or
developments that were not or were not sufficiently anticipated in
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Liquidity risk:

Operational risk, particularly legal
risk:

German Bank Restructuring Act:

D.3

General:

the design and implementation of the risk model underlying the
Banks risk management. In such a case, unexpected losses may
occur, or expected losses could be larger than expected.

The Bank defines liquidity risk as the risk that current and future
payment obligations may not be met in full or on time. Another
factor that the Bank includes in its assessment is that in the event
of a liquidity crisis it may not be possible to acquire refinancing
funds on the expected terms or to write back market items to the
planned extent.

Pursuant to the Solvency Regulation (Solvabilitatsverordnung)
(the "SolvV"), Berlin Hyp defines the operational risk as the risk
of losses resulting from the inappropriateness or failure of
internal processes and systems, human error or as a result of
external occurrences. This definition includes legal risk, but
excludes strategic and reputational risks. Legal risks mean the
risks of violation of any applicable law and changing legal
requirements, particularly of contractual or legal provisions or
jurisdictional developed provisions. This contains the risk of
violation of legal provision caused by ignorance of law, incorrect
interpretation of legal terms, negligent action or not timely
implementation. Operational risks can arise as a result of
deficiencies or faults in business processes, projects or checks
and can be caused by organisational structures, technology,
employees or external events such as changing legal conditions.
As a consequence Berlin Hyp may incur financial burdens in
connection with pending litigation. The general conditions of
banking supervision may change, and failure to comply with
supervisory regulations may result in the imposition of
compulsory measures and other disadvantages.

Berlin Hyp depends to a large extent on complex IT-systems
whose functionality may be impaired by internal and external
factors.

Measures taken by the Bank to protect data and ensure its
confidentiality may prove to be inadequate.

Berlin Hyp is subject to customary personnel risks, in particular
qualification, fluctuation, availability and motivation risks.

In the case of a severe financial crisis of the Issuer that involves
systemic risk, the German Bank Restructuring Act (Gesetz zur
Restrukturierung und geordneten Abwicklung von
Kreditinstituten) provides for reorganisation proceedings that may
adversely affect the rights of the Noteholders (except
Pfandbriefe).

Key information on the key risks that are specific to the securities.

An investment in the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] is only suitable for
potential investors who (i) have the requisite knowledge and
experience in financial and business matters to evaluate the
merits and risks of an investment in the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] and
the information contained in this Base Prospectus and any
applicable supplement thereto; (i) have access to, and
knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate such merits
and risks in the context of the potential investor's particular
financial situation and to evaluate the impact the [Notes]
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[Interest Rate Risk:

Credit Risk:

Credit Spread Risk:

[Rating of the [Notes]

[Pfandbriefe]:

[Reinvestment Risk:

Inflation Risk:

Purchase on Credit -

Financing:

Transaction Costs/Charges:

Debt

[Pfandbriefe] will have on their overall investment portfolio; (iii)
understand thoroughly the terms of the relevant [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] and are familiar with the behaviour of the financial
markets; (iv) are capable of bearing the economic risk of an
investment in the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] until the maturity of the
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe]; and (v) recognise that it may not be
possible to dispose of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] for a substantial
period of time, if at all before maturity.

The interest rate risk is one of the central risks of interest-bearing
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe] and a result of the uncertainty with respect
to future changes of the level of the current interest rate on the
capital market (the "Market Interest Rate"). The interest rate
level on the money and capital markets may fluctuate on a daily
basis and cause the value of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] to change
on a daily basis.]

Any person who purchases the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] is relying
upon the creditworthiness of the Issuer and has no rights against
any other person. Holders are subject to the risk of a partial or
total failure of the Issuer to make interest and/or redemption
payments that the Issuer is obliged to make under the [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe].

The credit spread is the margin, which the Issuer pays the
investor for taking a credit risk. Credit spreads are added as
margins to the current interest rate (without risk).

Holders are exposed to the risk that the credit spread widens
which results in a decrease in the price of the [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe].

The rating of [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] may not adequately reflect all
risks of the investment in such [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]. Such
suspension, downgrading or withdrawal may have an adverse
effect on the market value and trading price of the [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe].]

Holders may be exposed to risks connected to the reinvestment
of cash resources freed from any [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]. The risk
that the general Market Interest Rate falls below the interest rate
of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] during its term is generally called
reinvestment risk.]

The inflation risk is the risk of future money depreciation. The
real yield from an investment is reduced by inflation. The higher
the rate of inflation, the lower the real yield on the [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe].

If a loan is used to finance the acquisition of the [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] by a Holder and the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]
subsequently go into default, or if the trading price diminishes
significantly, the Holder may not only have to face a potential
loss on its investment, but will also have to repay the loan and
pay interest thereon.

When [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] are purchased or sold, several types
of incidental costs (including transaction fees and commissions)
are incurred in addition to the purchase or sale price of the
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe]. These incidental costs may significantly
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Taxation:

FATCA:

Independent Review and Advice:

[Risk of early redemption:

reduce or eliminate any profit from holding the [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe].

Potential investors should be aware that they may be required to
pay taxes or other documentary charges or duties in accordance
with the laws and practices of the country where the [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] are transferred or other jurisdictions.

With respect to the Notes issued by the Issuer after the later of
(a) 31 December 2013 and (b) the date that is six months after
the date on which final U.S. Treasury regulations define the term
"foreign passthru payment" (the "Grandfathering Date") or that
are materially modified after that date, the Issuer may, under
certain circumstance, be required pursuant to Sections 1471
through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended and the regulations promulgated thereunder ("FATCA")
to withhold U.S. tax at a rate of 30.00% on all or a portion of
payments of principal and interest which are treated as "foreign
passthru payments" made to foreign financial institutions unless
the payee foreign financial institution agrees, among other things,
to disclose the identity of certain U.S. account holders at the
institution (or the institution’s affiliates) and to annually report
certain information about such accounts.

Recently issued guidance by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service
indicates that with respect to Notes that are not outstanding on
the Grandfathering Date, FATCA withholding tax of 30.00% will
apply to foreign passthru payments made after 31 December
2016.

If applicable, FATCA will be addressed in the relevant Final
Terms with respect to Notes issued after the Grandfathering
Date. If an amount in respect of U.S. withholding tax were to be
deducted or withheld from interest, principal or other payments
on the Notes as a result of a holder’s failure to comply with
FATCA, none of the Issuer, any paying agent or any other
person would pursuant to the conditions of the Notes be required
to pay additional amounts as a result of the deduction or
withholding of such tax.

Each potential investor must determine, based on its own
independent review and such professional advice as it deems
appropriate under the circumstances, that its acquisition of the
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe] is fully consistent with its (or if it is
acquiring the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] in a fiduciary capacity, the
beneficiary's) financial needs, objectives and conditions,
complies and is fully consistent with all investment policies,
guidelines and restrictions applicable to it (whether acquiring the
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe] as principal or in a fiduciary capacity) and
is a fit, proper and suitable investment for it (or if it is acquiring
the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] in a fiduciary capacity, for the
beneficiary).

During the term of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe], the Issuer may elect
to redeem the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] early. Furthermore, the
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe] may be redeemed early for reasons of
taxation. In such circumstances, a Holder may not be able to
reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable security at an
effective interest rate as high as that of the relevant [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] and a Holder is exposed to the risk that due to
early redemption his investment will have a lower yield than
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Currency Risk:

No Deposit Protection:

Market lliquidity:

Market  Value of [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe]:
Market price risk — Historic
performance:
[[Fixed Rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe]:
[Floating Rate [Notes]

[Pfandbriefe]:] [CMS Floating
Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]:]
[Fixed to Floating Rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe]:] [Floating to Fixed
Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]:]
[Inverse/Reverse Floating Rate
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe]:

expected.]

A Holder of [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] which are denominated in a for
the Holder foreign currency is exposed to the risk of changes in
currency exchange rates which may affect the yield and/or the
redemption amount of such [Notes] [Pfandbriefe].

The [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] are neither protected by the Deposit
Protection Fund of the Association of German Banks
(Einlagensicherungsfonds des Bundesverbandes deutscher
Banken e.V.) nor by the German Deposit Guarantee and Investor
Compensation Act (Einlagensicherungs- und
Anlegerentschadigungsgesetz).

There can be no assurance as to how the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]
will trade in the secondary market or whether such market will be
liquid or illiquid or that there will be a market at all. The more
limited the secondary market is, the more difficult it may be for
the Holders to realise value for the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] prior to
maturity date.

The market value of [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] may be negatively
affected by a number of factors including, but not limited to,
market interest and vyield rates, market liquidity, the
creditworthiness of the Issuer and the time remaining to the
maturity date.

The historic price of [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] should not be taken as
an indicator of future performance of such [Notes] [Pfandbriefe].
It is not foreseeable whether the market price of the [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] will rise or fall. The Issuer gives no guarantee that
the spread between purchase and selling prices is within a
certain range or remains constant.

A holder of Fixed Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] is exposed to the
risk that the price of such [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] falls as a result of
changes in the Market Interest Rate. While the nominal interest
rate of Fixed Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] is fixed during the life of
such [Notes] [Pfandbriefe], the Market Interest Rate typically
changes on a daily basis. As the Market Interest Rate changes,
the price of Fixed Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] also changes. If the
Market Interest Rate increases, the price of Fixed Rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] typically falls, until the vyield of such [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] is approximately equal to the Market Interest Rate.
If the Market Interest Rate falls, the price of Fixed Rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] typically increases, until the yield of such [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe] is approximately equal to the Market Interest Rate.
Changes in the Market Interest Rate are in particular relevant for
Holders who wish to sell the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] prior to the
maturity date of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe].]

A holder of [Floating Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]] [CMS Floating
Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]] [Fixed to Floating Rate [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe]] [Floating to Fixed Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]]
[Inverse/Reverse Floating Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]] is exposed
to the risk of fluctuating interest rate levels and uncertain interest
income. Fluctuating interest rate levels make it impossible to
determine the yield of [Floating Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]] [CMS
Floating Rate [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]] [Fixed to Floating Rate
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe]] [Floating to Fixed Rate [Notes]
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[Zero

Coupon [Notes]

[Pfandbriefe]:

E.

E.2b

E.3

E.4

E.7

OFFER

Reasons for the offer and
use of proceeds when
different from making
profit and/or hedging
certain risks:

Description of the terms
and conditions of the
offer:

Description of any interest
that is material to the
issue/offer including
conflicting interest:

Estimated expenses
charged to the investor by
the Issuer or the offeror:

[Pfandbriefe]]  [Inverse/Reverse Rate

[Pfandbriefe]] in advance.]

Floating [Notes]

Zero Coupon [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] do not pay current interest
but are typically issued at a discount from their nominal value.
Instead of periodical interest payments, the difference between
the redemption price and the Issue Price constitutes interest
income until maturity and reflects the Market Interest Rate. A
Holder of Zero Coupon [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] is exposed to the
risk that the price of such [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] falls as a result of
changes in the Market Interest Rate. Prices of Zero Coupon
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe] are more volatile than prices of fixed rate
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe] and are likely to respond to a greater
degree to Market Interest Rate changes than interest bearing
[Notes] [Pfandbriefe] with a similar maturity.]

[The net proceeds of each issue of [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] will be
applied by the Issuer to meet part of its general financing
requirements.] [insert other reason for use of proceeds]

[insert aggregate amount of the [Notes]
[Pfandbriefe]]

[insert issue price of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]]

[insert minimum subscription size]

[insert type of distribution of the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]]
[insert start and end of marketing or subscription period of
the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]]
[insert any underwriting or
distributors]

[insert other or further conditions to which the offer is

subject]

principal

distribution by dealers or

[Not applicable. There are noch such [insert

description of any such interests]

interests.]

[Not applicable as no such expenses will be charged to the
investor by the Issuer or the offeror/s.] [insert description of
any such costs]
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ZUSAMMENFASSUNG DES PROSPEKTS
(GERMAN LANGUAGE VERSION)

Zusammenfassungen bestehen aus Offenlegungspflichten, die als Elemente (die "Elemente")
bezeichnet werden. Diese Elemente sind eingeteilt in Abschnitte A — E (A.1 — E.7). Diese
Zusammenfassung enthalt alle Elemente, die in einer Zusammenfassung fur diese Art von
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen] und die Emittentin enthalten sein muissen. Da einige
Elemente nicht zwingend angegeben werden mussen, kdnnen Licken in der Aufzahlung entstehen.
Auch wenn ein Element in die Zusammenfassung aufgrund der Art der [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] und der Emittentin aufgenommen werden muss, ist es mdglich, dass keine zutreffende
Information hinsichtlich dieses Elements angegeben werden kann. In diesem Fall ist eine kurze
Beschreibung des Elements mit dem Hinweis "Entfallt" enthalten.

A.

Al

A2

EINLEITUNG UND WARNHINWEISE
Diese Zusammenfassung (die "Zusammenfassung") ist als Einleitung zum Prospekt zu
verstehen.

Der Anleger sollte jede Entscheidung, in [Schuldverschreibungen]
investieren, auf den Prospekt als Ganzen stiutzen.

[Pfandbriefe] zu

Ein Anleger, der wegen der in dem Prospekt enthaltenen Angaben Klage einreichen will,
muss nach den nationalen Rechtsvorschriften seines Mitgliedsstaats mdglicherweise fiir die
Ubersetzung des Prospekts aufkommen, bevor das Verfahren eingeleitet werden kann.
Zivilrechtlich haftet nur die Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft,
Budapester Strasse 1, 10787 Berlin, Deutschland (in ihrer Eigenschaft als "Emittentin” unter
dem Programm), die die Zusammenfassung samt etwaiger Ubersetzung vorgelegt und
Ubermittelt hat, und dies auch nur fur den Fall, dass die Zusammenfassung verglichen mit den
anderen Teilen des Prospekts irrefiihrend, unrichtig oder inkohérent ist oder verglichen mit
den anderen Teilen des Prospekts wesentliche Angaben vermissen lasst.

Zustimmung des Emittenten [Vorbehaltlich der nachfolgenden Abséatze erteilt die

oder der fir die Erstellung
des Prospekts
verantwortlichen Person zur
Verwendung des Prospekts
far die spatere
WeiterverdufRerung oder
endglltige Platzierung von
Wertpapieren durch
Finanzintermediéare.

Angabe der Angebotsfrist,
innerhalb deren die spéatere
Weiterverauf3erung oder
endglltige Platzierung von
Wertpapieren durch
Finanzintermediare erfolgen
kann und fur die die
Zustimmung zur Verwendung
des Prospekts erteilt wird.

Alle sonstigen klaren und
objektiven Bedingungen, an
die die Zustimmung
gebunden ist und die fir die
Verwendung des Prospekts
relevant sind.

Emittentin ihre Zustimmung zur Verwendung des Prospekts
fir die spatere WeiterverduBerung oder endgiiltige
Platzierung von [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] durch
Finanzintermediére.]

[Nicht anwendbar. Die Emittentin erteilt keine Zustimmung zur

Verwendung des Prospekts far die spatere
WeiterverdulRerung oder endgiltige Platzierung von
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] durch

Finanzintermediare.]
[Entféllt. Es wurde keine Zustimmung gegeben.]

[Die spatere WeiterverdulRerung oder endgultige Platzierung
von [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] durch
Finanzintermediare, fir die die Zustimmung zur Verwendung
des Prospekts erteilt wurde, wird fiur den folgenden
Angebotszeitraum erteilt: [Angebotszeitraum einfugen, fir
den die Zustimmung erteilt wird].

[Entfallt. Es wurde keine Zustimmung gegeben.]
[Die Emittentin hat folgende Bedingungen, an die die

Zustimmung gebunden ist und die fir die Verwendung des
Prospekts relevant sind, festlegt: [Bedingungen einfligen].]
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B.1

B.2

B.4b

B.5

B.9

B.10

B.12

Deutlich hervorgehobener
Hinweis fur die Anleger, dass
fur den Fall, dass ein
Finanzintermediar ein
Angebot macht, dieser
Finanzintermediar die
Anleger zum Zeitpunkt der

Angebotsvorlage Uber die
Angebotsbedingungen
unterrichtet.

EMITTENT

Gesetzliche und

kommerzielle
der Emittentin:

Bezeichnung

Sitz und Rechtsform der
Emittentin, das fur die
Emittentin geltende Recht

und Land der Grindung:

Alle bereits bekannten
Trends, die sich auf die
Emittentin und die Branchen,
in denen sie tatig ist,
auswirken:

Ist die Emittentin Teil einer
Gruppe, Beschreibung der
Gruppe und der Stellung der

Emittentin innerhalb dieser
Gruppe:
Entsprechender Wert von

etwaigen Gewinnprognosen
oder —schéatzungen:

Art etwaiger
Beschrankungen im
Bestatigungsvermerk zu
den historischen
Finanzinformationen:

Informationen Uber die Bedingungen des Angebots eines
Finanzintermedidrs werden von diesem zum Zeitpunkt
des Angebots zur Verfigung gestellt.

Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft

Die Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft
("Berlin Hyp") ist eine nach deutschem Recht gegriindete
eingetragene Aktiengesellschaft und ist berechtigt, Geschafte
gemall dem deutschen Pfandbriefgesetz zu betreiben. Die
Berlin Hyp unterliegt der umfassenden Aufsicht durch die
Deutsche Bundesbank und die Bundesanstalt flr
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht.

Die weltweite Finanzkrise hat im In- und Ausland zu
steigender aufsichtsrechtlicher Aufsicht gefihrt, um eine
Neuregulierung oder eine strengere Durchsetzung der
bestehenden Regulierung des Finanzsektors, in dem die
Berlin  Hyp agiert, zu erreichen. Regulatorische
Veranderungen und Initiativen beziglich der Durchsetzbarkeit
kénnen weiterhin den Finanzsektor beeintrachtigen.
MaRRnahmen der Regierungen und Zentralbanken als
Reaktion auf die Finanzkrise beeintrachtigen den Wettbewerb
malf3geblich und kénnen Investoren von Finanzinstitutionen
beeintrachtigen.

Die Berlin Hyp hat mit der Berlin Hyp Immobilien GmbH eine
verbundene aktive Tochtergesellschaft. Die Berlin Hyp
Immobilien GmbH erwirbt Grundstiicke und verwaltet diese.
Ferner ist Gegenstand des Unternehmens, den Abschluss
von Vertrdgen Uber Grundstlicke, grundstiicksgleiche Rechte,
gewerbliche Raume, Wohnraume oder Darlehen zu vermitteln

oder die Gelegenheit zum Abschluss solcher Vertrage
nachzuweisen sowie alle damit zusammenhangenden
Geschéfte.

Entfallt. Die Emittentin hat weder eine Gewinnprognose noch
eine Gewinnschatzung abgegeben.

Entfallt. Der enthalt keine

Beschrankungen.

Bestatigungsvermerk

Ausgewahlte wesentliche historische Finanzinformationen:
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Kurzdarstellung Bilanz

Aktiva Passiva
in Mio. € 2012 2011 | in Mio. € 2012 2011
Forderungen an Verbindlichkeiten ggu.
Kreditinstitute 2.853 3.647 | Kreditinstituten 11.554 12.462
Forderungen an Kunden 21.458 23.009 | Verbindlichkeiten ggu. Kunden 7.818 8.254
Schuldverschreibungen Verbriefte Verbindlichkeiten 13.275 16.108
und andere
festverzinsliche Nachrangige Verbindlichkeiten 357 358
Wertpapiere 9.721 11.739
Fonds fir allgemeine
Ubrige Aktiva 173* Bankrisiken 41 0
Ubrige Passiva 329* 543*
Eigenkapital 831 831
Summe der Aktiva 34.205 38.556 | Summe der Passiva 34.205 38.556
* ungeprifte, aus aus historischen Finanzinformationen abgeleitete Information
Kurzdarstellung Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung
In Mio. € 2012 2011 Veranderung
Zinsertrage 857,3 1.006,7 -14,8%*
Zinsaufwendungen 641,8 791,1 -18,9%*
ZinsUberschuss 215,8 216,3 -0,2%
Provisionsiiberschuss 11,3 22,2 -49,1%
Zins- und Provisionsiiberschuss 227,1 238,5 -4,8%
Allgemeine Verwaltungsaufwendungen
a)Personalaufwendungen 39,2 37,3 5,1%
b)Andere Verwaltungsaufwendungen 37,4 28,2 32,6%
c)Abschreibungen auf Sachanlagen 59 5,2 13,5%
Verwaltungsaufwand 82,5 70,7 16,7%
Saldo der sonstigen betr. Ertrage/Aufwendungen 55 -8,1 -
Risikovorsorge 52,6 -29,9 -
Betriebsergebnis nach Risikovorsorge 202,7 129,8 56,2%
Aufgrund eines Gewinnabfuhrungsvertrags
abgefiihrte Gewinne 125,8 105,4 19,4%
Jahresiiberschuss 0,0 0,0 -
*ungeprufte, aus historischen
Finanzinformationen abgeleitete Information
Kurzdarstellung Kapitalisierung
in Mio. € 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Verbindlichkeiten ggu. Kreditinstituten 11.554 12.462
Begebene Hypotheken-Namenspfandbriefe 306 337
Begebene 6ff. Namenspfandbriefe 241 318
Andere Verbindlichkeiten 11.007 11.808
Verbindlichkeiten ggii. Kunden 7.818 8.254
Begebene Hypotheken-Namenspfandbriefe 3.376 3.587
Begebene 6ff. Namenspfandbriefe 1.562 1.551
Andere Verbindlichkeiten 2.880 3.116
Verbriefte Verbindlichkeiten 13.275 16.108
Begebene Hypothekenpfandbriefe 7.657 8.369
Begebene 6ff. Pfandbriefe 3.322 5.340
Begebene sonst. Schuldverschreibungen 2.296 2.399
Rechnungsabgrenzungsposten 43 67
Nachrangige Verbindlichkeiten 357 358
Genussrechtskapital 0 0
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Fonds fir allgemeine Bankrisiken
Eigenkapital

Gezeichnetes Kapital
Kapitalricklage
Gewinnrlicklagen

a) gesetzliche Rucklage

b) andere Ergebnisriicklagen
Bilanzgewinn
Treuhandverbindlichkeiten
Sonstige Verbindlichkeiten
Ruckstellungen

Summe der Passiva
Eventualverbindlichkeiten
Unwiderrufliche Kreditzusagen

41 0
831 831
753 753

53 53

22 22

0

2 2

7

176 353
110 116
34.205 38.556
48 66
957 773

B.13

B.14

B.15

Erklarung, dass sich die
Aussichten der Emittentin
seit dem Datum des letzten
veroffentlichten und
gepruften Abschlusses nicht

wesentlich verschlechtert
haben oder Beschreibung
jeder wesentlichen

Verschlechterung:

Wesentliche  Veranderung
der bei Finanzlage oder
Handelsposition der
Emittentin, die nach dem von
den historischen
Finanzinformationen ab-
gedeckten Zeitraum
eingetreten sind:

Beschreibung aller
Ereignisse aus jungster Zeit

der Geschéftstatigkeit der
Emittentin, die fur die
Bewertung ihrer

Zahlungsfahigkeit in hohem
Male relevant sind:

Etwaige Abhéngigkeit von
einer Gruppe:

Beschreibung der
Haupttatigkeiten der
Emittentin:

Zum Datum dieses Prospektes gab es keine wesentlichen
Veranderungen in der Finanzlage der Berlin Hyp seit dem
Datum des Jahresabschlusses zum Ende des Finanzjahrs
am 31. Dezember 2012, der die aktuellen gepriften
Jahresabschliisse der Berlin Hyp auf konsolidierter Basis
enthalt.

Entfallt. Seit dem 31. Dezember 2012 ist keine wesentliche
Veranderung in der Finanzlage der Berlin Hyp eingetreten.

Entfallt. Es gibt keine Ereignisse aus der jingsten Zeit der
Geschaftstatigkeit der Berlin Hyp, die fir die Bewertung ihrer
Zahlungsfahigkeit in hohem Malf3e relevant sind.

Die Anteile der Berlin Hyp werden zu 100% von der
Landesbank Berlin AG gehalten, deren Anteile wiederum
werden zu 100% von der Landesbank Berlin Holding AG
gehalten, an welcher wiederum die Erwerbsgesellschaft der
S-Finanzgruppe mbH & Co KG die Mehrheit halt.

Die Berlin Hyp hat ihren Tatigkeitsschwerpunkt in der Vergabe
von Uberwiegend gewerblichen Hypothekendarlehen, von
Darlehen an die Offentliche Hand oder 6ffentlich
gewabhrleistete Darlehen und deren Refinanzierung durch
Hypotheken- und o6ffentliche Pfandbriefe sowie ungedeckte
Schuldverschreibungen.
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B.16

B.17

Mitteilung, ob die Emittentin
unmittelbar oder mittelbar
beherrscht wird und
Beschreibung einer solchen
Beherrschung:

Ratings, die im Auftrag der
Emittentin oder in
Zusammenarbeit mit ihr beim
Ratingverfahren  fur  die
Emittentin oder ihrer
Schuldtitel erstellt wurden:

WERTPAPIERE

Beschreibung von Art und
Gattung der angebotenen
und/oder zum Handel
zuzulassenden Wertpapiere,
einschliellich jeder
Wertpapierkennung

Die Anteile der Berlin Hyp werden zu 100% von der
Landesbank Berlin AG gehalten, deren Anteile wiederum
werden zu 100% von der Landesbank Berlin Holding AG
gehalten, an welcher wiederum die Erwerbsgesellschaft der
S-Finanzgruppe mbH & Co KG die Mehrheit hélt. Seit dem 31.
August 2012 besteht ein Beherrschungsvertrag zwischen der
Berlin Hyp und der Landesbank Berlin AG als dem einzigen
Aktionar.

in Bezug auf die Schuldverschreibungen:
[Entfallt. Die Schuldverschreibungen

[- Rating
[Rating einfigen]]
haben kein Rating.]

[- Die Offentlichen Pfandbriefe der Berlin Hyp tragen ein
Rating von AA- von Fitch und Aal von Moody's Investors
Service Ltd. ("Moody’s"). Verbindlichkeiten, die ein Rating
von AA tragen, werden mit sehr hoher Kreditqualiat beurteilt
und deuten die Erwartung eines sehr geringen Ausfallrisikos
an. Das Vorzeichen "-" deutet den relativen Status innerhalb
der Rating-Kategorie an. Verbindlichkeiten, die ein Rating von
Aal tragen, werden mit hoher Qualitdt beurteilt, haben ein
sehr geringes Kreditrisiko und befinden sich am oberen Ende
dieser Rating-Kategorie.]

[- Die Hypothekenpfandbriefe der Berlin Hyp tragen ein Rating
von AA+ von Fitch und Aal von Moody’s. Verbindlichkeiten,
die ein Rating von AA tragen, werden mit sehr hoher
Kreditqualitat beurteilt und deuten die Erwartung eines sehr
geringen Ausfallrisikos an. Das Vorzeichen "+" deutet den
relativen Status innerhalb der Rating-Kategorie an.
Verbindlichkeiten, die ein Rating von Aal tragen, werden mit
hoher Qualitat beurteilt, haben ein sehr geringes Kreditrisiko
und befinden sich am oberen Ende dieser Rating-Kategorie.]

[Schuldverschreibungen sind Fremdkapitalinstrumente, die
durch eine oder mehrere Globalurkunde(n) verbrieft
werden. Schuldverschreibungen  sind  unbesicherte
Fremdkapitalverbindlichkeiten der Emittentin.] [Pfandbriefe
sind Fremdkapitalinstrumente, die durch eine oder mehrere
Globalurkunde(n) verbrieft werden. Pfandbriefe sind
Fremdkapitalverbindlichkeiten der Emittentin, die durch
gewisse qualifizierte Vermdgenswerte aus Deckungswerten
besichert werden.]

[Festverzinsliche
Festverzinsliche
sind Instrumente deren
unverandert bleibt.]
[Variabel verzinsliche [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]. Variabel verzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] sind Instrumente, bei
denen die Verzinsung wahrend der Laufzeit festgelegt wird.]
[CMS variabel verzinsliche [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]. CMS variabel verzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] sind Instrumente, bei
denen die Verzinsung wéhrend der Laufzeit festgelegt wird.]
[Fest- bis variabel verzinsliche [Schuldverschreibungen]

[Schuldverschreibungen]
[Schuldverschreibungen]
Zinssatz uber

[Pfandbriefe].
[Pfandbriefe]
die Laufzeit
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C.z2

C5

(O]

Wahrung der
Wertpapieremission:

Beschreibung aller etwaigen
Beschrankungen fur die freie
Ubertragbarkeit der
Wertpapiere:

Beschreibung der mit den
Wertpapieren verbundenen
Rechte (einschlieBlich des
Rangs und einer
Beschrankung dieser
Rechte)

[Pfandbriefe]. Fest- bis variabel verzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] sind Instrumente, bei
denen die Verzinsung wahrend der Laufzeit festgelegt wird.]
[Variabel- bis fest verzinsliche [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]. Variabel- bis fest verzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] sind Instrumente, bei
denen die Verzinsung wahrend der Laufzeit festgelegt wird.]
[Inverse/Reverse Floating [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]. Inverse/Reverse Floating
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] sind Instrumente, bei
denen die Verzinsung wéhrend der Laufzeit festgelegt wird.]
[Nullkupon-[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] sind
Instrumente, die auf einer abgezinsten Basis (d.h. unter dem
Nennwert) begeben werden und bei denen die Zinsen im
Rahmen der Zahlung des Rickzahlungsbetrages zum
Laufzeitende enthalten sind.]

[ISIN: [einfligen]]
[Common Code: [einfligen]]
[Wertpapierkennnummer: [einfligen]]

[Seriennummer: [einflgen].] [Tranchennummer:
[einfugen]]
Die [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] werden in

[Wahrung einfigen] begeben.

Nicht anwendbar, da es keine Beschrédnkungen beziglich der
freien Ubertragbarkeit gibt.

Glaubiger haben das Recht auf [Zinszahlungen am
jeweilgen Zinszahlungstag und] Kapitalzahlung am
Falligkeitstag.

[Im Fall von Schuldverschreibungen einfugen: [im Fall

von nicht nachrangigen Schuldverschreibungen
einfigen: Die in den Schuldverschreibungen verbrieften
Rechte sind nicht besicherte und nicht nachrangige

Verbindlichkeiten der Emittentin, die untereinander und mit
allen anderen nicht besicherten und nicht nachrangigen
gegenwartigen und zukinftigen Verbindlichkeiten der
Emittentin gleichrangig sind, soweit diesen Verbindlichkeiten
nicht durch zwingende gesetzliche Bestimmungen ein
Vorrang eingerdumt wird.] [im Fall von nachrangigen
Schuldverschreibungen einflgen: Die

Schuldverschreibungen  begriinden  unbesicherte  und
nachrangige  Verbindlichkeiten  der  Emittentin, die
untereinander und mit allen anderen nachrangigen

Verbindlichkeiten der Emittentin gleichrangig sind. Im Fall der
Auflésung, der Liquidation oder der Insolvenz der Emittentin
oder eines anderen der Abwendung der Insolvenz dienenden
Verfahrens gegen die Emittentin, gehen die Verbindlichkeiten
aus den Schuldverschreibungen den Anspriichen dritter
Glaubiger der Emittentin  aus nicht nachrangigen
Verbindlichkeiten im Range nach, so dass Zahlungen auf die
Schuldverschreibungen solange nicht erfolgen, wie die
Anspriche dieser dritten Glaubiger der Emittentin aus nicht
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C.9

Zinsen:

Nominaler Zins

nachrangigen Verbindlichkeiten nicht vollstédndig befriedigt
sind.]]

[Im Fall von Pfandbriefen einfiigen: Die in den Pfandbriefen
verbrieften Rechte sind nicht nachrangige Verbindlichkeiten
der Emittentin, die untereinander gleichrangig sind. Die
Pfandbriefe sind nach Maligabe des Pfandbriefgesetzes
gedeckt und stehen mindestens im gleichen Rang mit allen
anderen Verpflichtungen der Emittentin aus
Hypothekenpfandbriefen bzw. Offentlichen Pfandbriefen.]

[Das Recht auf Zinszahlung endet mit der ordnungsgeméRen
Ruckzahlung der [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] und
ist nicht beschréankt.] Das Recht auf Kapitalriickzahlung ist
nicht beschrankt und endet mit ordnungsgemaler
Ruckzahlung.

[Im Fall von festverzinslichen [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefen] einflgen: Festverzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] ("Festverzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]”) werden wéhrend
der Laufzeit mit [Zinssatz einfligen] verzinst.]

[Im Fall von variabel verzinslichen
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen] einfligen:
Variabel verzinsliche [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]
("Variabel Verzinsliche [Schuldverschreibungen]

[Pfandbriefe]") werden auf der Grundlage eines
Referenzzinssatzes verzinst. Der "Referenzzinssatz" ist der
[EURIBOR®] [LIBOR®]. Der fur zinszahlungen unter den
Variabel Verzinslichen [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefen] mafigebliche Zinssatz ist [eins zu eins der
Referenzzinssatz] [der  Referenzzinssatz [zuziglich]
[abzuglich] der Marge von [Marge einfligen] [der
Referenzzinssatz multipliziert mit einem Faktor in H6he von
[Faktor einfiigen].]

[Im Fall von CMS variabel verzinslichen
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen] einflgen:
Variabel verzinsliche [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe],
die CMS gebunden sind ("CMS Variabel Verzinsliche
Schuldverschreibungen"), werden mit Bezugnahme auf
einen Basiszins (dem [Basiszins einfugen] (der
"Basiszins")) verzinst. Der fur Zinszahlungen unter den CMS
Variabel Verzinslichen [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefen] mafgebliche Zinssatz ist [eins zu eins der
Basiszins] [der Basiszins [zuzlglich] [abzuglich] der Marge
von [Marge einfigen] [der Basiszins multipliziert mit einem
Faktor in Hohe von [Faktor einfligen] [der Basiszins
abzlglich eines anderen Basiszinses von [anderen
Basiszins einfligen] ("CMS Spread")].]

[In Fall von fest- bis variabel oder variabel bis fest
verzinslichen [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen]
einfligen: [Fest- bis variabel] [Variabel bis fest] verzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] werden auf der Basis
eines festen und eines variablen Zinssatzes verzinst ("[Fest-
bis  Variabel] [Variabel bis Fest] Verzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]”). Der feste
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Datum, ab dem die Zinsen
zahlbar werden und
Zinsfalligkeitstermine

Ist der Zinssatz nicht
festgelegt, Beschreibung des
Basiswerts, auf den er sich
stutzt

Falligkeitstermin und
Vereinbarungen  fir  die
Darlehenstilgung,

Zinssatz von [Zinssatz einfigen] ist wahrend der
[Festzinsperiode einfiigen] (der "Festzinssatz-Zeitraum")
anwendbar. [Nach dem Festzinssatz-Zeitraum werden die
Fest- bis Variabel Verzinslichen] [Vor dem Festzinssatz-
Zeitraum werden die Variabel bis Fest Verzinslichen]
[Schuldverschreibungen]  [Pfandbriefe]  wahrend dem
[variablen  Zinszeitraum einfigen] (der "Variable-
Zinszeitraum") auf der Grundlage eines Referenzzinssatzes
verzinst. Der "Referenzzinssatz' ist der [EURIBOR®]
[LIBOR®]. Der fur den Variablen-Zinszeitraum maf3gebliche
Zinssatz ist [eins zu eins der Referenzzinssatz] [der
Referenzzinssatz [zuzuglich] [abzlglich] der Marge von
[Marge einfligen] [der Referenzzinssatz multipliziert mit
einem Faktor in Hohe von [Faktor einfligen].]

[Im Fall von Inverse/Reverse Floating
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen] einfigen:
Inverse/Reverse Floating [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] ("Inverse/Reverse Floating

[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]") werden auf der
Basis eines Zinssatzes verzinst, der durch Subtraktion eines
variablen Referenzzinssatzes von [Festzinssatz einfligen]
entsteht. Der "Referenzzinssatz" fur die Inverse/Reverse
Floating %Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] ist der
[EURIBOR®] [LIBOR®].]

[Im Fall von Nullkupon-[Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefen] einfligen: Unter Nullkupon-
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] ("Nullkupon-
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]”) erfolgen keine
regularen Zinszahlungen.]

[Entfallt, da unter den Nullkupon-[Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefen] keine regularen Zinszahlungen erfolgen.] [Der
Zinslauf beginnt am [Datum einfugen]. Die
Zinsfélligkeitstermine sind [Zinsfélligkeitstermine einflgen]
(vorbehaltlich einer Anpassung).]

[Euro Interbank Offered Rate (EURIBOR®) bezeichnet den
Zinssatz fur Termingelder in Euro im Interbankengeschéft, der
geschéftstaglich fur Laufzeiten von 1, 2 und 3 Wochen und
die zwolf monatlichen Laufzeiten von 1 Monat bis zwolf
Monaten ermittelt wird.] [London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR®) bezeichnet den Zinssatz fur Termingelder im
Londoner Interbankengeschéft, der geschaftstaglich um 11:00
Uhr Londoner Zeit fur Laufzeiten von 1, 2 und 3 Wochen und
die zwolf monatlichen Laufzeiten von 1 Monat bis zwolf
Monaten ermittelt wird.] [Der CMS ist eine Form des
Zinsswaps, bei dem die Zinszahlung eines Swappartners in
regelméligen  Abstdnden an einen  (langerfristigen)
Referenzzinssatz ([Swapsatz einfliigen]) angepasst wird. Die
Zinszahlung des anderen Swappartners orientiert sich an
einem kurzfristigen Zinssatz (dem 6-Monats EURIBOR®).]
[Entfallt, da der Zinssatz fest ist.] [Entfallt, da unter den
Nullkupon-[Schuldverschreibungen]  [Pfandbriefen]  keine
reguléren Zinszahlungen erfolgen.]

Die [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] werden am
[Féalligkeitstermine einfiigen] zurtckgezahlt.
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C.10

c11

c.z21

einschlieRlich der

Ruckzahlungsverfahren

Angabe der Rendite

Name des Vertreters der
Schuldtitelinhaber

Wenn das Wertpapier eine
derivative Komponente bei

der Zinszahlung hat, eine
klare und umfassende
Erlauterung, die den

Anlegern verstandlich macht,
wie der Wert ihrer Anlage
durch den Wert des
Basisinstruments/der
Basisinstru-mente
beeinflusst
insbesondere in Fallen, in
denen die Risiken am
offensichtlichsten sind

wird,

Angabe, ob far die
angebotenen  Wertpapiere
ein Antrag auf Zulassung
zum Handel gestellt wurde
oder werden soll, um sie an
einem geregelten Markt oder
anderen gleichwertigen
Méarkten zu platzieren, wobei
die betreffenden Markte zu
nennen sind:

Angabe des Markts, an dem

die  Wertpapiere  kinftig
gehandelt werden und fir
den ein Prospekt

Die [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] werden zum
Féalligkeitstag zu [100% des Nennbetrages] [bei
Nullkupon-[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]
anderen Betrag einfigen, der aber nicht unter 100%
des Nennbetrages liegen darf] zurtickgezahlt.

Zahlungen von  Kapital [und Zinsen] auf die
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] erfolgen an das
Clearing System oder dessen Order zur Gutschrift auf den
Konten der jeweiligen Kontoinhaber des Clearing Systems.

[Rendite einfiigen] [Die Rendite der
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] kann zum
Begebungstag nicht berechnet werden, da der Zinssatz zu
diesem Zeitpunkt nicht feststeht.]

Entfallt. [Unter den Pfandbriefen kann kein gemeinsamer
Vertreter der Glaubiger bestellt werden, da das Gesetz
Uber Schuldverschreibungen aus Gesamtemissionen auf
Pfandbriefe keine Anwendung findet.] [Die Glaubiger
kénnen gemal den Bestimmungen des Gesetzes Uuber
Schuldverschreibungen aus Gesamtemissionen
(Schuldverschreibungsgsetz - "SchVvVG") durch
Mehrheitsbeschluss zur Wahrnehmung ihrer Rechte einen
gemeinsamen Vertreter (der "Gemeinsame Vertreter") fur
alle Glaubiger bestellen. Der Gemeinsame Vertreter hat die
Aufgaben und Befugnisse, welche ihm durch Gesetz oder
von den Glaubigern durch Mehrheitsbeschluld eingeraumt
wurden.]

Entfallt. Es gibt keine derivative Komponente bei der
Zinszahlung.

[Es wurde ein Antrag auf Zulassung der
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] zum Handel im

regulierten Markt der [Borse(n) einfligen] gestellt. Erster
Handelstag ist voraussichtlich der [Datum einfligen].]
[Es wurde ein Antrag auf Einbeziehung der
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] in den Handel im
Freiverkehr der [Borse(n) einfigen] gestellt. Erster
Handelstag ist voraussichtlich der [Datum einfligen].]

[Es wurde ein Antrag auf Zulassung der
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] zum Handel im
regulierten Markt der [Borse(n) einfligen] gestellt. Erster
Handelstag ist voraussichtlich der [Datum einfligen].]
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veroffentlicht wurde:

D. RISIKEN

Rating:

Markt- und
unternehmensbezogene Risiken:

Adressenausfallrisiko:

Marktpreisrisiko:

[Es wurde kein Antrag auf Zulassung der
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] an einem regulierten
Markt einer Wertpapierborse des Européischen
Wirtschaftsraumes gestellt.]

Zentrale Angaben zu den zentralen Risiken, die der Emittentin
eigen sind. Die Bank geht von der Funktionsfahigkeit der Geld-
und Kapitalmarkte aus. Allerdings sind die Auswirkungen der
deutlich erhdhten Staatsverschuldungen auf das wirtschaftliche
Umfeld noch nicht abschlieBend beurteilbar. Die Berlin Hyp ist
verschiedenen Risiken einschlie3lich unternehmerischer Risiken
ausgesetzt. Die erneute Finanzkrise und eine Verschlechterung
der wirtschaftlichen Rahmenbedingungen kdnnten die Risiken fir
die Geschéaftstatigkeit der Berlin Hyp im Allgemeinen erhdhen.
Die wesentlichen Risiken sind die Folgenden:

Ein Wertpapierrating ist keine Kauf-, Verkaufs- oder
Halteempfehlung und kann jederzeit von der jeweils
vergebenden Ratingagentur ausgesetzt, reduziert oder
widerrufen werden. Eine Aussetzung, Reduktion oder ein
Widerruf des den Schuldverschreibungen beigemessenen
Ratings kdnnte nachteilige Auswirkungen auf den Marktpreis der
Schuldverschreibungen haben.

Der Geschéftserfolg der Berlin Hyp ist vom wirtschaftlichen
Umfeld und von den wirtschaftlichen Rahmenbedingungen,
insbesondere des Immobilienmarkts, abhangig. Aul3erdem
kénnte sie als Pfandbriefemittentin einem verstarkten
Wettbewerb ausgesetzt werden, was sich nachteilig auf ihre
Finanzlage auswirken kann.

Die Berlin Hyp ist dem Adressenausfallrisiko ausgesetzt. Das
Adressenausfallrisiko ist das Risiko eines Verlustes oder
entgangenen  Gewinns aufgrund des Ausfalls eines
Geschéftspartners. Darliber hinaus beinhaltet es auch die
Gefahr des Werteverfalls bei den der Bank Uberlassenen
Sicherheiten. Obwohl Bonitatsrisiken und die den Krediten
zugrunde liegenden Sicherheiten regelmaRig tberpruft werden,
kann es aufgrund von unvorhersehbaren Ereignissen oder bisher
unbekannten Umstéanden zu Verlusten kommen.

Als Pfandbriefbank tbernimmt die Berlin Hyp Marktpreisrisiken
im  Wesentlichen in Form von Zinsanderungsrisiken.
Zinsanderungsrisiken bestehen aus zwei Komponenten: Das
allgemeine Risiko beschreibt Wertdnderungen aufgrund
allgemeiner Marktbewegungen, wahrend das spezifische Risiko
emittentenbezogene Ursachen hat. Das Zinsanderungsrisiko
wird grundsétzlich mit Hilfe von Swaps, Swaptions, Wertpapieren
sowie Kommunaldarlehen gesteuert. Zudem erfolgte der
verstarkte Einsatz von Forward Rate Agreements, um die
erhdhten Geldmarktvolatilitaten auszusteuern. Die Bank geht
keine Aktienkursrisiken ein.

Es kann nicht ausgeschlossen werden, dass Umstande oder
Entwicklungen eintreten, die bei der Konzeption der
Risikomodelle, welche die Grundlage des Risikomanagements
bilden, nicht oder nicht ausreichend antizipiert wurden. In einem
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Liquiditatsrisiko:

Operationelles
insbesondere Rechtsrisiko:

Risiko,

Gesetz zur Restrukturierung und

geordneten  Abwicklung
Kreditinstituten:

D.3

Allgemein:

von

solchen Fall kénnten unvorhergesehene Verluste eintreten.

Die Bank definiert als Liquiditatsrisiko das Risiko, dass den
gegenwartigen und klnftigen Zahlungsverpflichtungen nicht
vollstandig oder zeitgerecht nachgekommen werden kann. Des
weiteren bezieht die Bank in die Bewertung ein, dass im Fall
einer Liquiditatskrise Refinanzierungsmittel nicht zu den
erwarteten Konditionen erworben bzw. dass Marktpositionen
nicht in der geplanten GroRRe aufgeldst werden kénnen.

Die Berlin Hyp definiert das operationelle Risiko gemass der
Verordnung Uber die angemessene Eigenmittelausstattung von
Instituten, Institutsgruppen  und Finanzholding-Gruppen
(Solvabilitdtsverordnung - "SolvV") als die Gefahr von
Verlusten, die infolge der Unangemessenheit oder des
Versagens von internen Verfahren und Systemen, Menschen
oder infolge externer Ereignisse eintreten. Diese Definition
schlielt Rechtsrisiken ein, beinhaltet aber nicht strategische
Risiken und Reputationsrisiken. Unter Rechtsrisiken werden die
Risiken aus der Verletzung geltender sowie sich &andernder
rechtlicher Bestimmungen, insbesondere von vertraglichen,
gesetzlichen oder gerichtlich entwickelten Rechtsvorschriften
verstanden. Dies umfasst das Risiko von Verstdlien gegen
Rechtsbestimmungen  aufgrund von  Unkenntnis, nicht
ausreichend  sorgfaltiger Rechtsanwendung (nachlassige
Interpretation), fahrlassigen Handelns oder nicht zeitgerechter
Umsetzung. Operationelle Risiken koénnen infolge von
Unzulanglichkeiten oder Fehlern in den Geschéaftsprozessen,
Projekten oder Kontrollen entstehen und durch
Organisationsstrukturen, Technologie, Mitarbeiter oder externe
Ereignisse wie zum Beispiel eine Anderung der rechtlichen
Rahmenbedingungen verursacht werden. So kénnen sich aus
anhangigen Prozessen finanzielle Belastungen ergeben. Die
bankaufsichtsrechtlichen Rahmenbedingungen kénnen sich
andern, und die Nichteinhaltung aufsichtsrechtlicher Vorschriften
kann zur Verhangung von Zwangsmalnahmen und zu anderen
Nachteilen fuhren.

Die Berlin Hyp héngt in hohem Mafe von komplexen IT-
Systemen ab, deren Funktionsfahigkeit durch interne und
externe Umsténde beeintrachtigt werden kann.

MaRnahmen zum Datenschutz und zur Sicherung der
Vertraulichkeit kdnnten sich als unzureichend erweisen.

Die Berlin Hyp unterliegt den (blichen Personalrisiken,
insbesondere Qualifizierungs-, Fluktuations-, Verflugbarkeits- und
Motivationsrisiken.

Im Falle einer bestandsgefahrdenden Krise der Emittentin, die zu
einer Systemgefahrdung fiihrt, kann unter dem Gesetz zur
Restrukturierung und geordneten Abwicklung von Kreditinstituten
ein Reorganisationsverfahren durchgefuhrt werden, das die
Rechte der Glaubiger (aul3er bei Pfandbriefen) beeintrachtigt.

Zentrale Angaben zu den zentralen Risiken, die den
Wertpapieren eigen sind.

Eine Anlage in [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] ist nur fir
potentielle Investoren geeignet, die (i) Uber die erforderlichen
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[Zinsrisiko:

Kreditrisiko:

Kreditspannen Risiko:

[Rating
[Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]:

der

Kenntnisse und Erfahrungen im Finanz- und Geschéaftswesen
verfigen, um die Vorteile und Risiken einer Anlage in die
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] und die Informationen,
die im Basisprospekt und etwaigen Nachtréagen dazu enthalten
sind, einschatzen zu kdnnen, (ii) iber Zugang zu und Kenntnis
von angemessenen Analyseinstrumenten zur Bewertung dieser
Vorteile und Risiken vor dem Hintergrund der individuellen
Finanzlage des Anlegers sowie zur Einschatzung der
Auswirkungen einer Anlage in die [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] auf das Gesamtportfolio des potentiellen Investors
verfugen, (iii) die Bedingungen der jeweiligen
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] génzlich verstanden
haben und mit dem Verhalten der Finanzmérkte vertraut sind,
(iv) das wirtschaftliche Risiko einer Anlage in die
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] bis zu deren Falligkeit
tragen konnen und (v) zur Kenntnis nehmen, dass eine
VerdulRerung der [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] tber
einen erheblichen Zeitraum, sogar bis zur Falligkeit, eventuell
nicht moglich ist.

Das Zinsrisiko ist eines der zentralen Risiken verzinster
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] und resultiert aus der
Unsicherheit im Hinblick auf die kunftige Entwicklung des
Niveaus des aktuellen Zinssatzes des Kapitalmarktes (der
"Marktzinssatz"). Das Zinsniveau an den Geld- und
Kapitalmarkten kann taglichen Schwankungen unterliegen,
wodurch  sich der Wert der [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] taglich verandern kann.]

Jede Person, die [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] kauft,
verlasst sich auf die Kreditwirdigkeit der Emittentin und hat
keine Rechte gegen eine andere Person. Glaubiger sind dem
Risiko ausgesetzt, dass die Emittentin Zins- und/oder
Tilgungszahlungen, zu denen sie im Zusammenhang mit den
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen] verpflichtet ist, teilweise
oder vollumfanglich nicht leisten kann.

Die Kreditspanne ist die Marge, die die Emittentin dem Glaubiger
als Aufschlag fir das Ubernommene Kreditrisiko zahlt.
Kreditspannen werden als Aufschlage auf den gegenwartigen
(risikolosen) Zinssatz dargestellt.

Fur Glaubiger besteht das Risiko einer Ausweitung der
Kreditspanne, die einen Kursruickgang der
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] zur Folge hat.

Das Rating der [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] spiegelt
maoglicherweise nicht samtliche Risiken einer Anlage in die
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] wider. Das Aussetzen,
Herabstufen oder die Ricknahme eines Ratings kdnnen den
Marktwert und den Kurs der [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] beeintrachtigen.]
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[Wiederanlagerisiko:

Inflationsrisiko:

Kauf auf Kredit

Fremdfinanzierung:

Transaktionskosten/Gebihren:

Besteuerung:

FATCA:

Fur die Glaubiger bestehen Risiken in Zusammenhang mit der
Wiederanlage liquider Mittel, die aus [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] freigesetzt werden. Das Risiko, dass der
allgemeine  Marktzinssatzes wéahrend der Laufzeit der
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] unter den Zinssatz der
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] fallt, wird als
Wiederanlagerisiko bezeichnet.]

Das Inflationsrisiko besteht in dem Risiko einer kinftigen
Verringerung des Geldwertes. Die reale Rendite einer Anlage
wird durch Inflation geschmalert. Je hoher die Inflationsrate,
desto niedriger die reale Rendite von [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefen].

Finanziert ein Glaubiger den Erwerb von
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen] Gber ein Darlehen und
kommt es in Bezug auf die [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] zu einem Zahlungsausfall oder sinkt der Kurs stark,
so muss der Glaubiger nicht nur den moglichen Verlust seines
Anlagebetrages tragen, sondern auch das Darlehen und die
darauf anfallenden Zinsen zuriickzahlen.

Beim Kauf oder Verkauf von [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefen] fallen neben dem Kauf- oder Verkaufspreis der

[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] unterschiedliche
Nebenkosten (u.a. Transaktionsgebiihren und Provisionen) an.
Diese Nebenkosten kénnen die Ertrage aus

[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen] erheblich mindern oder
gar aufzehren.

Potentielle Investoren sollten sich vergegenwartigen, dass sie
gegebenenfalls verpflichtet sind, Steuern oder andere Gebiihren
oder Abgaben nach Maf3gabe der Rechtsordnung und Praktiken
desjenigen Landes Zu zahlen, in das die
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] tbertragen werden oder
mdglicherweise auch nach MaflRgabe anderer Rechtsordnungen.

In Bezug auf Schuldverschreibungen, welche von der Emittentin
nach dem spéateren der beiden folgenden Tage: (a) dem 31.
Dezember 2013 bzw. (b) dem Tag, der 6 Monate nach dem Tag
liegt, an dem endguiltige U.S. Treasury Verordnungen den Begriff
"auslandische durchgeleitete Zahlungen" definieren (der
"Stichtag"), begeben oder erheblich verandert werden, kann die
Emittentin unter bestimmten Umstanden gemaf Abschnitten
1471 bis 1474 des U.S. Internal Revenue Code von 1986 in der
geanderten Fassung sowie den darunter erlassenen
Verordnungen ("FATCA") dazu verpflichtet sein, eine U.S.
Quellensteuer von 30,00% auf alle oder einen Teil der
Zahlungen auf Kapital und Zinsen zu zahlen, welche als passthru
payments ("Durchgeleitete Zahlungen") an auslandische
Finanzinstitute behandelt werden, es sei denn, das ausléandische
Finanzinstitut als Zahlungsempfanger erklart sich unter anderem
damit einverstanden, die Identitdt bestimmter U.S. Kontoinhaber
bei dem auslandischen Finanzinstitut (oder bei seinen
Tochtergesellschaften) offenzulegen und jahrlich bestimmte
Informationen uber solche Konten zu melden.

Eine klrzlich vom U.S. Internal Revenue Service erlassene

Richtlinie  weist darauf hin, dass in Bezug auf
Schuldverschreibungen, die am Stichtag noch nicht begeben
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Unabhangige Einschétzung und

Beratung:

[Risiko der vorzeitigen

Ruckzahlung:

Wahrungsrisiko:

Kein Schutz
Einlagensicherung:

Fehlende Marktliquiditat:

durch

waren, die FATCA Quellensteuer von 30,00% auf auslandische
Durchgeleitete Zahlungen, welche nach dem 31. Dezember 2016
gemacht werden, anwendbar ist.

Sofern anwendbar, werden die maligeblichen Endgultigen
Bedingungen der Schuldverschreibungen, welche nach dem
Stichtag begeben werden, auf FATCA eingehen. Sollte ein
Betrag im Rahmen der U.S. Quellensteuer von den Zinsen, dem
Kapital oder anderen Zahlungen auf die Schuldverschreibungen
abgezogen oder einbehalten werden, weil der Glaubiger gegen
FATCA verstol3en hat, ist weder die Emittentin noch irgendeine
Zahlstelle  oder eine andere  Person unter den
Emissionsbedingungen dazu verpflichtet, aufgrund eines solchen
Abzugs oder Einbehalts zusétzliche Zahlungen zu leisten.

Jeder potentielle Erwerber der [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] muss auf der Grundlage seiner eigenen
unabhéngigen Einschatzung und der entsprechenden
unabhéngigen den Umstanden entsprechenden professionellen
Beratung entscheiden, ob der Kauf der [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] in jeder Hinsicht seinen eigenen finanziellen
Maoglichkeiten, Zielen und Umsténden (oder, fur den Fall, dass
die [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] treuh&nderisch
erworben werden, derjenigen des Begunstigten) entspricht, mit
allen geltenden Anlagerichtlinien, Richtlinien und
Einschrankungen (je nachdem ob die [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] im eigenen Namen oder treuhanderisch erworben
werden) Ubereinstimmt und sich als geeignete angemessene
und zulassige Investition darstellt (fur sich selbst oder, fir den
Fal, dass die [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]
treuhanderisch erworben werden, fir den Beglnstigten).

Die Emittentin kann sich wahrend der Laufzeit von
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen] dazu entschliel3en,
diese vorzeitig zuriickzuzahlen. In einer derartigen Situation sind
Glaubiger mdoglicherweise nicht in  der Lage, den
Rickzahlungsbetrag in Wertpapiere mit einer vergleichbar hohen
Effektivverzinsung zu reinvestieren und der Glaubiger dieser
[Schuldverschreibungen]  [Pfandbriefe] ist dem  Risiko
ausgesetzt, dass infolge der vorzeitigen Rickzahlung seine
Kapitalanlage eine geringere Rendite als erwartet aufweisen
wird.]

Der Glaubiger einer Schuldverschreibung, die auf eine fur den
Glaubiger fremde Wahrung lautet, ist dem Risiko von
Wechselkursschwankungen ausgesetzt, welche den Ertrag
und/oder Ruckzahlungsbetrag dieser [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] beeinflussen kénnen.

Die unter diesem Programm ausgegebenen
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] werden weder durch den
Einlagensicherungsfonds des Bundesverbandes deutscher
Banken e.V. noch durch das Einlagensicherungs- und
Anlegerentschadigungsgesetz abgesichert.

Es kann nicht vorausgesagt werden, ob es fiur die
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] einen Sekundarmarkt
gibt, ob ein solcher Markt liquide oder illiquide sein wird und wie
sich die [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] in einem solchen
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Marktwert von
[Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefen]:

Marktpreisrisiko -  Bisherige

Wertentwicklung:

[[Festverzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]:

[Variabel Verzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]:] [CMS Variabel
Verzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]:] [Fest- bis Variabel
Verzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]:] [Variabel bis Fest
Verzinsliche
[Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]:] [Inverse/Reverse
Floating [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]:

[Nullkupon-
Schuldverschreibungen:

Sekundarmarkt handeln lassen. Je  begrenzter der
Sekundarmarkt ist, desto schwieriger kann es flr einen
Glaubiger sein, den Wert der [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] vor inrem Falligkeitstag zu realisieren.

Der Marktwert von [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen] kann
durch eine Vielzahl von Faktoren, wie z.B. den Marktzins und
Renditen, die Marktliquiditat, die Bonitat der Emittentin sowie
durch die noch verbleibende Zeit bis zum Falligkeitstag negativ
beeinflusst werden.

Der historische Kurs der [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]
ist kein Indikator fir seine kiinftige Entwicklung. Es lasst sich
nicht vorhersagen, ob der Marktpreis der
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] steigen oder fallen wird.

Der Glaubiger Festverzinslicher [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] ist dem Risiko ausgesetzt, dass der Kurs solcher
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] infolge von
Veranderungen des aktuellen Marktzinssatzes fallt. Wahrend der
Nominalzinssatz  festverzinslicher  [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] wahrend der Laufzeit der [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] fest ist, veréndert sich der Marktzinssatz
typischerweise taglich. Da der Marktzinssatz sich verandert,
verandern sich die Kurse festverzinslicher
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] ebenfalls. Wenn der
Marktzinssatz ~ steigt, féallt  typischerweise der  Kurs
festverzinslicher [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe], bis die
Rendite solcher [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] etwa
dem Marktzinssatz entspricht. Wenn der Marktzinssatz fallt,
steigt typischerweise der Kurs festverzinslicher
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe], bis die Rendite solcher
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] etwa dem Marktzinssatz
entspricht. Veranderungen im Marktzinssatz sind inbesondere fir
solche Glaubiger relevant, die die [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] vor ihrer Falligkeit verkaufen méchten.]

Der Glaubiger [Variabel Verzinslicher [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]] [CMS Variabel Verzinslicher
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]] [Fest- bis Variabel
Verzinslicher [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]] [Variabel
bis Fest Verzinslicher [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]]
[Inverse/Reverse Floating [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]] ist dem Risiko eines schwankenden Zinsniveaus
und ungewisser Zinsertrdge ausgesetzt. Ein schwankendes
Zinsniveau macht es unmdglich, die Rendite von [Variabel
Verzinslichen [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen]] [CMS
Variabel Verzinsliche [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]]
[Fest- bis Variabel Verzinslicher [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe]] [Variabel bis Fest Verzinslicher
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]] [Inverse/Reverse
Floating [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]] im Voraus zu
bestimmen.]

Auf Nullkupon-[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] werden
keine  Zinsen gezahlt, jedoch  werden Nullkupon-
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] normalerweise mit einem
Abschlag auf ihren Nominalwert begeben. Anstelle von
periodischen Zinszahlungen, begriindet die Differenz zwischen
dem Ruckzahlungskurs und dem Emissionspreis
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E.

E.2b

E.3

E.4

E.7

ANGEBOT

Grinde fir das Angebot
und Zweckbestimmung
der Erlose, sofern diese
nicht in der
Gewinnerzielung und/oder
Absicherung  bestimmter
Risiken liegen:
Beschreibung der
Angebotskonditionen:

Beschreibung aller fur die
Emission/das Angebot
wesentlichen, auch
kollidierenden
Beteiligungen:

Schéatzung der Ausgaben,
die dem Glaubiger von der
Emittentin oder Anbieter in
Rechnung gestellt werden:

Zinseinkommen bis zur Falligkeit und reflektiert den
Marktzinssatz. Ein Glaubiger von Nullkupon-
[Schuldverschreibungen]  [Pfandbriefe] ist dem  Risiko

ausgesetzt, dass der Kurs solcher [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefe] infolge von Veranderungen des Marktzinssatzes
fallt. Kurse von Nullkupon-[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe]
sind volatiler als Kurse von festverzinslichen
[Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefen] und reagieren in
hoherem Malle auf Veranderungen des Marktzinssatzes als
verzinsliche [Schuldverschreibungen] [Pfandbriefe] mit einer
ahnlichen Falligkeit.]

[Die Nettoerlose jeder Emission von [Schuldverschreibungen]
[Pfandbriefen] werden von der Emittentin fur die Erfullung ihrer
finanziellen Verbindlichkeiten verwendet.] [Anderen
Verwendungsgrund angeben]

[Emissionsvolumen einfigen]

[Verkaufskurs einfligen]

[Mindestzeichnung einflgen]

[Art des Verkaufes einfligen]

[Verkaufsbeginn und Verkaufsende einfiigen]
[Emissionsiibernahme und/oder Platzierung durch andere
Institute einfligen]

[weitere besondere Angaben der
einfligen]

Angebotskonditionen
[Entfallt. Es gibt keine solchen Interessen.] [Etwaige Interessen

beschreiben]

[Nicht anwendbar, da keine solche Ausgaben von der
Emittentin oder dem/den Anbieter/n in Rechnung gestellt
werden.] [Etwaige Kosten beschreiben]
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3. RISK FACTORS
3.1 Risk Factors regarding Berlin Hyp

The following is a disclosure of all material risk factors that may affect the Issuer's ability to
fulfill its obligations under the Notes. Prospective investors should consider these risk factors
before deciding to purchase Notes issued under the Programme.

Prospective investors should consider all information provided in this Base Prospectus and
consult with their own professional advisers if they consider it necessary. In addition,
investors should be aware that the risks described may combine and thus intensify one
another.

The crisis on the financial markets and its effect on Berlin Hyp

The economic framework conditions were and are characterised by the development of the
government debt crisis and the associated refinancing problems for banks in particular relating to
sustained intentions of regulation as well as major doubts as regards the debt sustainability of
individual — in particular European — states. Linked to this was and is considerable uncertainty on the
financial markets, which was and is accompanied by significant market turbulence.

The Bank assumes the existence of functional money and capital markets. Nevertheless, the effects
of still elevated national debt on the business environment cannot yet be entirely assessed.

Like other market participants, Berlin Hyp faces certain risks in connection with its business activities,
which might result in its inability to fulfil its obligations under any Notes issued hereunder.

3.1.1 Rating

The rating agency Fitch Inc., Fitch Ratings Ltd. ("Fitch"), announced for the first time in May 2008 its
credit evaluation for Berlin Hyp. Recently the Bank has the rating A+ for the long-term rating for
unsecured liabilities and the rating F1+ for the short-term. The Long Term Rating "A" is defined as
high credit quality and the capacity of financial commitments is considered strong. The modifier "+" is
appended to denote the positive relative status within the major categories. The Short Term Rating
"F1+" is defined as highest short-term credit quality. It indicates the strongest intrinsic capacity for
timely payment of financial commitments. The "+" denotes any exceptionally strong credit feature. The
viablity was fixed at bbb-. Viability attempt to assess how a bank would be viewed if it were entirely
independent and could not rely on external support.

The Public Sector Pfandbriefe of Berlin Hyp have been rated AA- by Fitch and Aal by Moody's
Investors Service Ltd. ("Moody’s"). Obligations rated AA are judged to be of very high credit quality
and denote expectations of very low default risk. The modifier "-" denotes the relative status of the
rating within the rating category. Obligations rated Aal are judged to be of high quality, are subject to
very low credit risk and rank in the higher end of this rating category.

The Mortgage Pfandbriefe of Berlin Hyp have been rated AA+ by Fitch and Aal by Moody's.
Obligations rated AA are judged to be of very high credit quality and denote expectations of low
default risk. The modifier "+" denotes the relative status of the rating within the rating category.
Obligations rated Aal are judged to be of high quality, are subject to a very low credit risk and rank in
the higher end of this rating category.

Notes issued pursuant to the Programme may be rated or unrated. A rating is not a recommendation
to buy, sell or hold Notes issued under the Programme and may be subject to suspension, reduction
or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency. A suspension, reduction or withdrawal of the
rating assigned to the Notes issued under the Programme may adversely affect the market price of
the Notes issued under the Programme.

Fitch and Moody’s are established in the European Union and have been registered with the relevant
competent authority under Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009, on 31 October 2011.

The Issuer confirms that the rating information provided by the respective rating agency has been
accurately reproduced and as far as the Issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from information
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available to it from such third party, no facts have been omitted, the omission of which would render
the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

3.1.2 Market and company related risks

The commercial success of the Bank depends upon the economic environment and overall economic
conditions, in particular the real estate market. Furthermore, Berlin Hyp as an issuer of covered
bonds, may be exposed to intensified competition, which may have an adverse effect on its financial
condition.

3.1.3 Counterparty risk

The Berlin Hyp is generally subject to the risk of a loss or foregone profit as a result of default by a
business partner as well as the risk of a fall in value of the collateral transferred to the Bank.
Counterparty default risk materialises where a financing partner's economic situation deteriorates, or
where this partner cannot meet its contractual obligations fully or in time. Collateralisation risks result
from the threat of a loss in value of collateral which can occur through property-specific or market-
induced factors.

For example, the fair market value of real estate, which is used as collateral for loans, particularly in
the real estate financing business, is subject to significant fluctuations over the course of time, caused
in particular by changes in supply and demand, construction deficiencies and delays, land
contamination and hazards, leasing status (vacancies) or potential buyers and their financial
resources, changes in the general legal framework such as tax treatment, and other factors that are
beyond the control of Berlin Hyp (such as natural disasters and terrorist attacks). Such market
developments and changes may in particular reduce the value of the collateral. Consequently, there is
a risk that the collateral may not sufficiently cover the loans. Berlin Hyp evaluates the collateral
furnished for real estate financing at regular intervals in accordance with the rules of banking
supervision law. Any significant increase in loan defaults, any decline in the value of real estate
collateral and any slump the real estate markets in which the Bank acts as a lender may result in loan
defaults and thereby be detrimental to the Group’s interest earnings and its profitability.

In order to cover loan losses, Berlin Hyp has posted loan loss provisions by means of adjustments on
the level of both individual loans and portfolios. It cannot be ruled out that the Bank may have to
increase its loan loss provisions in the future, for example, if the number of non-performing loans in
the loan portfolio increases or the market values of the underlying collateral decrease.

The financing in publicly subsidised residential construction still entails hidden risks due to the
structurally increasing cover deficit between loan utilisation and collateral value. The reason for this is
the reduction in subsidies, which cannot be compensated by rent increases. Insofar as necessary, the
Bank is countering this risk by performing a value allowance.

In the securities area the Bank only purchases securities from public sector issuers or from
guaranteed titles as well as from banks and insurance companies with good credit ratings.

3.1.4 Market price risks

As a Pfandbrief bank, Berlin Hyp assumes market price risks primarily in the form of interest rate
change risks. These risks comprise two components: the general risk describes changes in value
resulting from general shifts in the market, whereas the specific risk is caused by issuer-related
factors. The risk of a change in interest rates is in principle managed with the aid of swaps, swaptions,
securities and public-sector loans.

In view of the complexity and volume of business activities and the volatility of the markets, it cannot
be ruled out that several market price risks have not (or have not exhaustively) been identified,
assessed, and secured, or that the risk management systems may fail under certain circumstances,
particularly in the case of risks that Berlin Hyp did not recognise or expect. The internal risk models
that serve as a basis for the risk management are based on observations of historic market behavior.
Berlin Hyp together with the major shareholder Landesbank Berlin applies statistical methodologies to
such observations in order to quantify its risk potential. If incidents or developments occur that were
not known to the Bank when the statistical models were developed and implemented or that were not
recognised or predicted, the losses could be larger than anticipated. If the measurement methods for
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the identification and limitation of risks prove to be inadequate, this could incur significant unexpected
losses.

3.1.5 Liquidity risks

The Bank defines the liquidity risk as the risk that current and future payment obligations may not be
met in full or on time. Another factor that the Bank includes in its assessment is that in the event of a
liquidity crisis, it may not be possible to acquire refinancing funds on the expected terms or to write
back market items to the planned extent.

3.1.6 Operational risks

Pursuant to the Solvency Regulation (Solvabilitatsverordnung, the "SolvV"), Berlin Hyp defines the
operational risk as the risk of losses resulting from the inappropriateness or failure of internal
processes and systems, human error or as a result of external occurrences. This definition includes
legal risks, but not strategic risks and reputation risks. Berlin Hyp follows the requirements published
by the Basel Committee for identifying, assessing and communicating risks arising from the business
processes of a bank. Operational risks can arise as a result of deficiencies or faults in business
processes, projects or checks and can be caused by organisational structures, technology,
employees or external events as changing legal conditions. So Berlin Hyp may incur financial burdens
in connection with pending litigation. The general conditions of banking supervision may change, and
failure to comply with supervisory regulations may result in the imposition of compulsory measures
and other disadvantages.

IT risks

Berlin Hyp's business activity is dependant to a large extent on information technology systems,
modern communication media and other technical systems. IT systems are vulnerable to a number of
problems such as computer viruses, hacker attacks, damage to IT centers and software and hardware
errors. Theses problems can cause the IT systems to fail, either in whole or in part. The complete or
partial failure of IT systems may result in significant disruption of business processes, temporary
suspension of business operations, claims for damages, and/or loss of clients.

In addition, the IT systems require regular adjustments and updates in order to be able to meet
changing business needs and supervision regulations. This places considerable demands on the
functionality of the Banks IT systems. If the Bank is unable to make the necessary adjustments and
updates to its IT systems, this may result in disruption of business transactions, datasets that contain
errors, calculations that do not meet the requirements of supervision law, and other disruptions and
risks, the details of which cannot be predicted.

Data protection

Measures to protect data and ensure its confidentiality may prove to be inadequate. The data
collected in connection with the business activities is strictly confidential and is subject to data
protection because it is part of the fiduciary relationship between banks and their clients. Berlin Hyp
has taken a number of measures to protect the data processed and managed in its business activities
and to comply with the relevant regulations. However, it cannot be ruled out that these measures may
prove to be inadequate and the confidentiality of this data may be violated, including by third parties
that gain access to the Banks systems without authorisation. This could expose Berlin Hyp to claims
for damages.

Personnel risks

Berlin Hyp is subject to customary personnel risks, in particular qualification, fluctuation, availability
and motivation risks.

Legal risks

Berlin Hyp is generally subject to Legal risks. Legal risks mean the risks of violation of any applicable
law and changing legal requirements, particularly of contractual or legal provisions or jurisdictional
developed provisions. This contains the risk of violation of legal provision caused by ignorance of law,
incorrect interpretation of legal terms, negligent action or not timely implementation. Legal risks are in
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principle counteracted by observation of the legal environment, the stipulation of guidelines and the
use of standard contracts. Sufficient reserves were formed for legal risks.

General conditions of banking supervision

As a financial company as defined in the German Banking Act (Kreditwesengesetz), Berlin Hyp is
subject to banking supervision regulations. Supervisory regulations require that the Bank meets
minimum requirements as to its capital resources, i.e. that a risk management system is established,
and that precautionary measures are taken in order to prevent clients from misusing the Bank’'s
business for money-laundering purposes. The regulatory and supervisory framework is subject to
continuous developments not only at the national level, but also at the European and international
level. Therefore, it is subject to changes, which may result in the Bank’s present business activity
being restricted. Moreover, compliance with amended or newly-imposed supervision regulations may
lead to an increase in administrative expenses (including the expense of maintaining capital
resources as required by regulations) and consequently to higher cost ratios.

In the event of violations of the laws, rules and regulations of banking supervision, the competent
supervisory authority and/or the central bank may issue orders to the Bank and its business managers
or may impose fines. Orders of the nature may negatively affect the Bank’s future business activity,
and in extreme cases may lead to the termination of the future business activity. In addition, the
imposition of fines may have a negative effect on Berlin Hyp’s financial condition and results of
operations. If violations against supervision regulations are identified, this may lead to higher scrutiny
by the supervising authority and therefore to an increase in the administrative expenses. If orders or
fines imposed on the Berlin Hyp by supervisory authorities become publicly known, this may lead to a
loss of confidence among clients and business partners which may also have a negative effect on the
Bank’s financial condition and results of operations.

Proceedings for Enforced Collection against Shareholders of Fund Companies

The Bank conducts a large number of collection procedures in regard to cancelled fund loans. These
procedures need to be undertaken because the funds’ shareholders, in the legal form of a private
partnership or a partnership, are personally liable for paying the loan back to the Bank corresponding
to their proportional share in the company, and yet refuse to make payment.

The Federal Court of Justice has made numerous rulings confirming the shareholders’ personal
liability pursuant to Sections 128 and 130 German Commercial Code for loan contracts concluded
between banks and investment companies. Furthermore, in 2011, the Federal Court of Justice
decided in favour of the Bank insofar as that, when agreeing on personal proportional liability of the
shareholders, the liability amount is calculated from this proportion — in relation to the initial capital —
and that proceeds from the liquidation of discharged mortgages are not apportionable to a
shareholder’s personal liability.

The suits concluded in 2012 were nearly all decided in the Bank’s favour. Regarding the still
undecided cases, the Bank assumes that it will emerge victorious. At the same time, the Bank made
sufficient provision for general litigation risks.

German Bank Restructuring Act or the Second Financial Market Stabilisation Act

In the case of a severe financial crisis of the Issuer that involves systemic risk, the German Bank
Restructuring Act (Gesetz zur Restrukturierung und geordneten Abwicklung von Kreditinstituten)
provides for reorganisation proceedings that may adversely affect the rights of the Noteholders
(except Pfandbriefe). In addition, the German legislator has introduced the Second Financial Market
Stabilisation Act (Zweites Gesetzes zur Umsetzung eines MalRnahmenpakets zur Stabilisierung des
Finanzmarktes) which has entered into force on 1 March 2012. Pursuant to such act, inter alia, the
BaFin may impose regulatory measures on a German credit institution if the financial condition of
such credit institution raises doubts whether such entity can comply with the capital or liquidity
requirements of the German Banking Act on a permanent basis. Even though such regulatory
measures may not directly interfere with Noteholders' rights, the fact that BaFin applies such tool to
aspecific credit institution may have indirect negative effects, e.g. on pricing of instruments issued by
such entity or on the entity's ability to refinance itself.
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3.1.7 Risk of potential conflicts of interest

Each of the Issuer, the Dealer(s) or their respective affiliates may deal with and engage generally in
any kind of commercial or investment banking or other business with any issuer of underlying
securities, their respective affiliates or any guarantor or any other person or entities having obligations
relating to any issuer of underlying securities or their respective affiliates or any guarantor in the same
manner as if any equity or bond linked Notes issued under the Programme did not exist, regardless of
whether any such action might have an adverse effect on an issuer of the underlying securities, any of
their respective affiliates or any guarantor.

The Issuer may from time to time be engaged in transactions (including, without limitation, hedging
activities related to the Notes) involving the Underlying Securities, the Index, Index Components or
related derivatives or Relevant Commodities which may affect the market price, liquidity or value of
the Notes and which could be deemed to be adverse to the interests of the noteholders.

Potential conflicts of interest may arise between the calculation agent and the Holders, including with
respect to certain discretionary determinations and judgments that the calculation agent may make
pursuant to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes that may influence the amount receivable upon
redemption of the Notes.

3.2 Risk Factors regarding the Notes

The following is a disclosure of risk factors that are material to the Notes issued under the Programme
in order to assess the market risk associated with these Notes. Prospective investors should consider
these risk factors before deciding to purchase Notes issued under the Programme.

Prospective investors should consider all information provided in this Prospectus and the Final Terms
and consult with their own professional advisers (including their financial, accounting, legal and tax
advisers) if they consider it necessary. In addition, investors should be aware that the risks described
may combine and thus intensify one another.

Neither the Issuer, the Dealer(s) nor any of their respective affiliates has or assumes responsibility for
the lawfulness of the acquisition of the Notes by a prospective purchaser of the Notes, whether under
the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or the jurisdiction in which it operates (if different) or for
compliance by that prospective purchaser with any laws, regulation or regulatory policy applicable to
it. A prospective purchaser may not rely on the Issuer, the Dealer(s) or any of their respective affiliates
in connection with its determination as to the legality of its acquisition of the Notes.

Notes may not be a suitable Investment for all Investors

Each potential investor in Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

0] have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the relevant
Notes, the merits and risks of investing in the relevant Notes and the information contained or
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus or any applicable supplement;

(i) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of
its particular financial situation and the investment(s) it is considering, an investment in the
Notes and the impact the Notes will have on its overall investment portfolio;

(iii) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the
relevant Notes, including where principal or interest is payable in one or more currencies, or
where the currency for principal or interest payments is different from the potential investor’s
currency;

(iv) understand thoroughly the terms of the relevant Notes and be familiar with the behaviour of
any relevant indices and financial markets; and

(v) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear
the applicable risks.
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Some Notes are complex financial instruments. Sophisticated institutional investors generally do not
purchase complex financial instruments as stand-alone investments. They purchase complex financial
instruments as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield with an understood, measured, appropriate
addition of risk to their overall portfolio. A potential investor should not invest in Notes which are
complex financial instruments unless it has the expertise (either alone or together with a financial
adviser) to evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the
value of the Notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential investor’'s overall
investment portfolio.

Liquidity Risk

Application has been made to list and trade Notes to be issued under the Programme on the markets
of the Berlin Stock Exchange appearing on the list of regulated markets published by the European
Comission (Borse Berlin, regulierter Markt). In addition, the Programme provides that Notes may be
listed on other or further stock exchanges or may not be listed at all. Regardless of whether the Notes
are listed or not, there can be no assurance that a liquid secondary market for the Notes will develop
or, if it does develop, that it will continue. The fact that the Notes may be listed does not necessarily
lead to greater liquidity as compared to unlisted Notes. If the Notes are not listed on any stock
exchange, pricing information for such Notes may, however, be more difficult to obtain which may
affect the liquidity of the Notes adversely. In an illiquid market, an investor might not be able to sell his
Notes at any time at fair market prices. The possibility to sell the Notes might additionally be restricted
by country specific reasons.

Market Price Risk

The development of market prices of the Notes depends on various factors, such as changes of
market interest rate levels, the policy of central banks, overall economic developments, inflation rates
or the lack of or excess demand for the relevant type of Note. The Holder is therefore exposed to the
risk of an unfavourable development of market prices of its Note which materialises if the Holders sell
the Notes prior to the final maturity of such Notes. If the Holder decides to hold the Notes until final
maturity the Notes will be redeemed at the amount set out in the Final Terms.

Risk of Early Redemption

The Final Terms will indicate whether an Issuer may have the right to call the Notes prior to maturity
(optional call right) or whether the Notes will be subject to early redemption in case of the occurrence
of an event specified in the Final Terms (early redemption event). In the case of Notes other than
Pfandbriefe, the Issuer will always have the right to redeem the Notes if the Issuer is required to make
gross-up payments. If the Issuer redeems the Notes prior to maturity or the Notes are subject to early
redemption due to an early redemption event, the Holder of such Notes is exposed to the risk that due
to early redemption his investment will have a lower yield than expected. The Issuer might exercise
his optional call right if the yield on comparable Notes in the capital market falls which means that the
investor may only be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in Notes with a lower yield.

Amendments to Terms and Conditions

In relation to Notes (other than Pfandbriefe) where the German Bond Act
(Schuldverschreibungsgesetz), which came into effect on 5 August 2009, pursuant to the Terms and
Conditions is applicable, a Holder supporting a dissenting view on a matter is subject to the risk of
losing rights vis-a-vis the Issuer against his will in the event that the Holders agree pursuant to the
Terms and Conditions with the Issuer to make certain amendments thereto by majority vote according
to the German Bond Act (Schuldverschreibungsgesetz). In the case of an appointment of a common
representative for all Holders a particular Holder may lose, in whole or in part, the possibility to
enforce and claim his rights against the Issuer regardless of other Holders.

Fixed Rate Notes

The holder of a Fixed Rate Note is exposed to the risk that the price of such Note falls as a result of
changes in the market interest rate. While the nominal interest rate of a Fixed Rate Note as specified
in the Final Terms is fixed during the life of such Note, the current interest rate on the capital market
("Market Interest Rate") typically changes on a daily basis. As the market interest rate changes, the
price of a Fixed Rate Note also changes, but in the opposite direction. If the market interest rate
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increases, the price of a Fixed Rate Note typically falls until the yield of such Note is approximately
equal to the market interest rate. If the market interest rate falls, the price of a Fixed Rate Note
typically increases until the yield of such Note is approximately equal to the Market Interest Rate. If
the holder of Fixed Rate Notes holds such Notes until maturity, changes in the market interest rate are
without relevance to such holder as the Notes will be redeemed at a specified redemption amount,
usually the principal amount of such Notes.

Floating Rate Notes

Floating Rate Notes tend to be volatile investments. The holder of a Floating Rate Note is exposed to
the risk of fluctuating interest rate levels and uncertain interest income. Fluctuating interest rate levels
make it impossible to determine the yield of Floating Rate Notes in advance. If Floating Rate Notes
are structured to include multipliers or other leverage factors, or Caps or Floors, or any combination of
those features or other similar related features, the market value may be more volatile than those for
Floating Rate Notes that do not include these features. If the amount of interest payable is determined
in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the
effect of changes in the interest rates on interest payable will be increased. The effect of a Cap is that
the amount of interest will never rise above and beyond the predetermined Cap, so that the Holder
will not be able to benefit from any actual favourable development beyond the Cap. The yield could
therefore be considerably lower than that of similar Floating Rate Notes without a Cap.

Fixed to Floating Rate Notes/Floating to Fixed Rate Notes

A holder of Fixed to Floating Rate Notes/Floating to Fixed Rate Notes is exposed to either risk that a)
the spread on the Fixed to Floating Rate Notes/Floating to Fixed Rate Notes may be less favourable
than the then prevailing spreads on comparable Floating Rate Notes relating to the same reference
interest rate, if the Issuer converts from a fixed interest rate to a floating rate of interest, or b) the fixed
interest rate may be lower than the then prevailing interest rates payable on the Notes, if the Issuer
converts from a floating rate of interest to a fixed interest rate.

Inverse/Reverse Floating Rate Notes

A holder of Inverse/Reverse Floating Rate Notes is exposed to the risk that a) the interest income on
these Notes falls if the reference interest rate rises or vice versa and b) the market price of such
Notes is more volatile than the market price of other more conventional floating rate notes based on
the same reference interest rate (and with otherwise comparable terms).

CMS-linked Notes

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes may provide for a variable interest rate which is dependent on
the difference between rates for swaps having different terms or being fixed on different dates.
Investors purchasing CMS-linked Notes might expect that, during the term of such Notes, (i) the
interest curve will not, or only moderately, flatten out, or (ii) depending on the structure of the CMS-
linked Notes, expect that the interest curve will not steepen, as the case may be. In the event that the
market does not develop as anticipated by investors and that the difference between rates for swaps
having different terms decreases to a greater extent than anticipated, the interest rate payable on the
Notes will be lower than the interest level prevailing as at the date of purchase, or even no interest will
be payable at all. In such cases, the price of CMS-linked Notes will also decline during their term.

In case of CMS-linked Notes where interest is dependent on the difference between rates for swaps
being fixed on different dates, the investor might expect that the CMS might increase or decrease
depending on the structure of the Notes. In the event that the market does not develop as anticipated
by investors the interest rate payable on the Notes might be lower than expected.

Subordinated Notes

The obligations of the Issuer in case of subordinated Notes constitute unsecured and subordinated
obligations. In the event of dissolution, liquidation or bankruptcy of the Issuer, the obligations under
the Notes may be satisfied only after non-subordinated claims of creditors have been satisfied so that
in any such event no amounts shall be payable in respect of such obligations until the claims of all
unsubordinated creditors of the Issuer shall have been satisfied in full. No holder may set off his
claims arising under the Notes against any claims of the Issuer. No contractual security may be
provided, and will not at any time in the future be provided by the Issuer or any other person to secure
rights of the holders under the Notes. No subsequent agreement may limit the subordination pursuant
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to the provisions set out in § 2 of the Terms and Conditions of the Notes or amend the Maturity Date
in respect of the Notes to any earlier date or shorten any applicable notice period (Kindigungsfrist).

Zero Coupon Notes

Zero Coupon Notes do not pay current interest but are issued at a discount from their nominal value.
Instead of periodical interest payments, the difference between the redemption price and the issue
price constitutes interest income until maturity and reflects the market interest rate. The holder of Zero
Coupon Notes is exposed to the risk that the price of such Notes falls as a result of changes in the
market interest rate. Prices of Zero Coupon Notes are more volatile than prices of Fixed Rate Notes
and are likely to respond to a greater degree to market interest rate changes than interest bearing
notes with a similar maturity.

Payments under the Notes may be subject to withholding tax pursuant to FATCA

With respect to Notes issued by the Issuer after the later of (a) 31 December 2013 and (b) the date
that is six months after the date that the term "foreign passthru payment" is defined in regulations
published in the U.S. Federal Register (the "Grandfathering Date") or that are materially modified
after such date, the Issuer may, under certain circumstances, be required pursuant to Sections 1471
through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and the regulations
promulgated thereunder ("FATCA") to withhold U.S. tax at a rate of 30.00% on all or a portion of
payments of principal and interest which are treated as "passthru payments" made to foreign financial
institutions unless the payee foreign financial institution agrees, among other things, to disclose the
identity of certain U.S. account holders at the institution (or the institution’s affiliates) and to annually
report certain information about such accounts.

Recently issued guidance by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service indicates that with respect to Notes
that are not outstanding on the Grandfathering Date, FATCA withholding tax of 30.00% will apply to
foreign passthru payments made after 31 December 2016.

If applicable, FATCA will be addressed in the relevant Final Terms with respect to Notes issued after
the Grandfathering Date. If an amount in respect of U.S. withholding tax were to be deducted or
withheld from interest, principal or other payments on the Notes as a result of a holder’s failure to
comply with FATCA, none of the Issuer, any paying agent or any other person would pursuant to the
conditions of the Notes be required to pay additional amounts as a result of the deduction or
withholding of such tax.

4. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO § 5(4) SECURITIES PROSPECTUS ACT
(WERTPAPIERPROSPEKTGESETZ — WpPG

Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft, with its registered office in Berlin, assumes
responsibility for the content of this Base Prospectus pursuant to 8 5 (4) of the WpPG and declares
that, to the best of its knowledge, the information contained in this Base Prospectus (including any
information incorporated by reference) is in accordance with the facts and no material circumstances
have been omitted.

Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengeselleschaft, with its registered office in Berlin, having
taken all reasonable care to esure that such is the case declares that the information contained in this
Base Prospectus (including any information incorporated by reference) is to the best of its knowledge
in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

5. IMPORTANT NOTICE

This Base Prospectus should be read and understood in conjunction with any supplement thereto and
with any other document incorporated herein by reference. Full information on Berlin Hyp and any
tranche of Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of the Base Prospectus and the
applicable Final Terms relating to such tranche.

The Issuer has confirmed to the dealers set forth on the cover page that this Prospectus contains all
information which is material in the context of the Programme and the issue and offering of Notes
thereunder; that the information contained herein is accurate and complete in all material respects
and is not misleading; that any opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held; that there
are no other facts, the omission of which would make this Prospectus as a whole or any of such
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information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading; and that the Issuer has
made all reasonable enquiries to ascertain all facts material for the purposes aforesaid.

The Issuer has undertaken with the Dealer (i) to publish a supplement to this Prospectus or to publish
a new Prospectus if and when information herein should become materially inaccurate or incomplete
or in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy relating to the information
included in this Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of the Notes and (ii) where
approval by the BaFin of any such document is required, to have such document approved by the
BaFin.

No person is authorised to give any information or to make any representation in connection with the
issue and sale of the Notes other than that which is contained in this Base Prospectus or any other
document entered into in relation to the Programme or any information supplied by the Issuer or such
other information as is in the public domain and, if given or made, such information and
representations should not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer.

This Base Prospectus is valid for 12 months following the date of its publication and it and any
supplement hereto as well as any Final Terms reflect the status as of their respective dates of issue.
The delivery of this Base Prospectus or any Final Terms and the offering, sale or delivery of any
Notes may not be taken as an implication that the information contained in such documents is
accurate and complete subsequent to their respective dates of issue or that there has been no
adverse change in the financial situation of the Issuer since such date or that any other information
supplied in connection with the Programme is accurate at any time subsequent to the date on which it
is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in the document containing the same.

The distribution of this Base Prospectus, any document incorporated herein by reference and any
Final Terms and the offering, sale and delivery of Notes in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by
law.

Neither the Arranger nor the Dealer, their affiliates nor any other person mentioned in this Prospectus,
except for the Issuer, is responsible for the information contained in this Prospectus or any
supplement thereto, or any Final Terms or any other document incorporated herein by reference, and
accordingly, and to the extent permitted by the laws of any relevant jurisdiction, none of these persons
accepts any responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the information contained in any of
these documents

Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus or any Final Terms come are required by the
Issuer to inform themselves about, and to observe, any such restrictions. A description of the relevant
restrictions on offers, sales and deliveries of Notes and on the distribution of the Prospectus or any
Final Terms and other offering material relating to the Notes will be provided in the applicable Final
Terms. In particular, the Notes have not been and will not be registered under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain
exceptions, Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States of America or to U.S.
persons.

This Base Prospectus and any Final Terms may not be used for the purpose of an offer or solicitation
by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person to
whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation.

This Base Prospectus and any Final Terms do not constitute an offer or an invitation to subscribe for
or purchase any Notes.

In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes, the institution(s) (if any) named as the
stabilising manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any stabilising manager(s)) in the applicable
Final Terms may over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting the price of the
Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurance that
the stabilising manager (or persons acting on behalf of any stabilising manager(s)) will undertake
stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on which adequate public
disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche of Notes is made and, if begun, may be
ended at any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the
relevant Tranche of Notes and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of
Notes. Any stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant stabilising
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manager(s) (or person(s) acting on behalf of any stabilising manager(s)) in accordance with all
applicable laws and rules.

Consent to use the Base Prospectus

Throughout the period of the validitiy of this Base Prospetctus in accordance with § 9 (2) WpPG each
financial intermediary subsequently reselling or finally placing Notes issued under the Programme is
entitled to use the Prospectus in the Federal Republic of Germany, the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg,
the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, the Republic of Ireland, the Republik of
Italy and the Republic of Austria for the subsequent resale or final placement of the relevant Notes
during the respective offer period (as determined in the applicable Final Terms) during which
subsequent resale or final placement of the relevant Notes can be made, provided however, that the
Issuer confirms such consent in the relevant Final Terms. The Issuer accepts responsibility for the
information given in this Base Prospectus also with respect to such subsequent resale or final
placement of the relevant Notes.

The Base Prospectus may only be delivered to potential investors together with all supplements
published before such delivery. The Base Prospectus and any supplement to the Prospectus is
available for viewing in electronic form on the website of the Issuer (www.berlinhyp.de).

New information with respect to financial intermediaries unknown at the time of the approval of the
Base Prospectus or the filing of the Final Terms, as the case may be, will be published on the website
of the Issuer (www.berlinhyp.de).

When using the Base Prospectus, each dealer and/or relevant further financial intermediary must
make certain that it complies with all applicable laws and regulations in force in the respective
jurisdictions.

In the event of an offer being made by a dealer and/or a further financial intermediary the
financial intermediary shall provide information to investors on the terms and conditions of
the Notes at the time of that offer.

Any financial intermediary using the Base Prospectus shall state on its website that it uses the
Base Prospectus in accordance with a consent and the conditions attached to such consent.

Third Party Information

Where information has been sourced from a third party, the Issuer confirms that this information has
been accurately reproduced and that as far as the Issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from
information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the
reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. The source of information is set out where the
relevant information is given.
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6. BERLIN-HANNOVERSCHE HYPOTHEKENBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
6.1. Statutory Auditors

Statutory  auditor of Berlin Hyp is PricewaterhouseCoopers Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft, Lise-Meitner-Strasse 1, 10598 Berlin, Federal Republic of Germany,
("PwC") who has audited the unconsolidated financial statements of Berlin Hyp for the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2012, respectively, and has issued an unqualified auditor’'s report in each
case. PwC is a member of the German Chamber of Chartered Accountants
(Wirtschaftspriiferkammer).

6.2 History and development
Legal and commercial name, place of registration, registration number

Legal name and commercial name of the Bank is Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank
Aktiengesellschaft.

Berlin—-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft is registered in the Commercial Register
(Handelsregister) of a local court of Berlin (Amtsgericht Charlottenburg) under No. HRB 56530.

Date of incorporation

Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft ("Berlin Hyp") was created in 1996 by the
merger of Berliner Hypotheken- und Pfandbriefbank AG with the former Braunschweig-Hannoversche
Hypothekenbank AG, since renamed as its current name. The latter was founded in Braunschweig,
Germany, in 1871.

Legal form, domicile, address, telephone number legislation

Berlin Hyp is a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) under German law. Its registered office is
located in Berlin, Budapester Strasse 1, 10787 Berlin, Federal Republic of Germany, telephone no.:
+49 (0) 30/25 999-0.

Up to 18 July 2005, Berlin Hyp was authorised to conduct business and to provide services subject to
the requirements of the Mortgage Bank Act (Hypothekenbankgesetz). Since 19 July 2005, the
Pfandbrief operations of Berlin Hyp are subject to the Pfandbrief Act of 27 May 2005
(Pfandbriefgesetz). Berlin Hyp is supervised by the German Central Bank (Deutsche Bundesbank)
and the BaFin (Bundesanstalt fir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht — BaFin).

Share Capital, Shares

The share capital amounts € 753,389,240.32. It is divided in 294,292,672 no-par value bearer shares.
The shares are held by the sole shareholder Landesbank Berlin AG.

Evaluation of Berlin Hyp’s solvency

The total of chargeable items in terms of the SolvV has decreased compared with the previous year.
As at 31 December 2012, it amounted to € 8.4 billion and was underpinned by liable capital of € 1.1
billion. This equates to an equity ratio of 12.66% (31 December 2011: 12.07%) — the minimum ratio is
8.0% of risk assets.

In addition to internal management tools, the Bank’s short term liquidity risk is limited by the relevant
German banking regulations. Berlin Hyp is required by the Liquidity Regulation
(Liquiditatsverordnung) to maintain a liquidity ratio for the maturity band | of 1. Berlin Hyp complied
with the requirements of the Liquidity Regulation (Liquiditatsverordnung) at all times during 2012.

The key figure of the Liquidity Regulation (Liquidititsverordnung) at year-end 2012 was 1.58,
compared to 1.42 at year-end 2011. The minimum rate is 1.00.

To secure its day-to-day liquidity, the Banks liquidity management function has a portfolio of qualifying
securities for central bank repurchase operations at its disposal that it can sell at short notice or
deposit as security for refinancing transactions with central banks.
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Furthermore — should there be appropriate cover in the cover funds for Public Sector Pfandbriefe —
this can also be used as security of government credit portfolios for "Repo" business with the ECB.

6.3 Business overview
6.3.1 Principal activities

According to its articles of association, Berlin Hyp’'s aim is the granting of loans through the provision
of long-term mortgages as collateral; providing of loans to public corporations and institutions or
against a guarantee by such corporation and institutions.

The potential business opportunities of Berlin Hyp in its capacity as a so called Pfandbrief bank
(Pfandbriefbank) under the Pfandbrief Act are, with a few exceptions, nearly the same as those for
universal banks. However, Berlin Hyp does not plan to change its business model.

Mortgage business

Berlin Hyp is a real estate financing bank that serves small to medium-sized enterprises. Its new
customers are experienced investors with high credit ratings in the private and commercial area,
municipal housing associations and cooperatives, as well as selected developers. Also in commercial
property financing, Berlin Hyp follows a traditionally low risk business policy.

Public loan business

The Bank does not follow in this area a volume or portion of the market aim. Its business is conducted
via strict profit ratio principles.

In public loan business, the Bank only purchases securities from public sector issuers or from
guaranteed titles with good credit ratings.

Refinancing

In order to perform this duty, the Bank issues mortgage Pfandbriefe (Hypothekenpfandbriefe), public
sector Pfandbriefe (Offentliche Pfandbriefe) and unsecured debentures.

The Bank aims to achieve a liquidity matching financing of its assets. The good standing of the Bank
must at all times be preserved. The relation of opportunistic small sized private placements and
strategic high volume bonds must be balanced.

6.3.2 Principal markets

Berlin Hyp’s mortgage business is focused on the German and in minor size on the European market,
where the Bank primarily works in financially strong conurbations. The Bank has a network of
customer advisers in the offices Berlin, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt, Hamburg, Munich, and in the
representative offices in Warsaw, Paris and Schiphol. The Bank provides in cooperation with
Landesbank Berlin in addition to conventional mortgage bank products, subordinated and short term
financing together with the entire range of services provided by a traditional bank. Accordingly, loans
to public corporations and institutions are mainly granted in Germany. Furthermore, Berlin Hyp
purchases and sells securities issued by European countries, regions and institutions.

The public loan business operates since 19 July 2005 within the boundaries of the Pfandbrief Act with
partners throughout Europe.

6.4 Organisational Structure

Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft is part of the Landesbank Berlin group
(formerly Bankgesellschaft Berlin group, the "Group").

On 1 January 1994, Landesbank Berlin - Girozentrale -, Berliner Bank and Berlin Hyp were linked
under the umbrella of a new parent company entity, Bankgesellschaft Berlin AG. This followed a
decision in 1992 by the Senate of the State of Berlin to unite its banks shareholdings, with the
objectives of forming a major banking group in the city and strengthening the position of Berlin as a
financial center. As a key component of the Group's Real Estate division, Berlin-Hannoversche
Hypothekenbank focuses on long-term real estate finance and public sector finance.

46



Since 1 January 2006 Landesbank Berlin ("LBB") — formerly a bank subject to public law — is
transformed into a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft — AG) according to the German Stock
Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz). The State of Berlin has established the necessary legal framework by
the Savings Bank Act of 28 June 2005. The Act prescribes that Berliner Sparkasse is to remain
unchanged as a public-sector unit within the Landesbank Berlin AG. The legislator has thus ensured
that the savings bank’s public functions, for example, supporting savings and issuing loans to small
and medium sized companies in the Berlin-Brandenburg region, can be continued.

As of 29 August 2006 Bankgesellschaft Berlin AG has changed its name into Landesbank Berlin
Holding AG ("LBBH"). During the course of 2006, Landesbank Berlin AG and Landesbank Berlin
Holding AG (former Bankgesellschaft Berlin AG) combined the business activities of both banks in
one legal entity namely Landesbank Berlin AG.

The intended transfer of the banking business of Landesbank Berlin Holding AG to Landesbank Berlin
AG became effective on 29 August 2006. Landesbank Berlin Holding AG remains as a pure holding
company for Landesbank Berlin AG with no business on its own and no banking licence.

Beteiligungsgesellschaft der Erwerbsgesellschaft der
S-Finanzgruppe mbH & Co0.KG S-Finanzgruppe mbH & Co.KG
11% l i 29 %
Landesbank Berlin Holding AG //II&%EAG La"desgg;i}‘;
l 100%
LBB LandesBank
Landesbank Berlin AG //II Berlin
Berliner Sparkasse é Berliner
l 100 % Sparkasse
Berlin-Hannoversche .
Hypothekenbank AG - Berlin Hyp
100%
J’ Berlin Hyp
Berlin Hyp Immobilien GmbH Immobilien GmbH

In 2007, the State of Berlin and the German Savings Banks Association public corporation (DSGV,
respectively Beteiligungsgesellschaft der S-Finanzgruppe mbH & Co. KG and Erwerbsgesellschaft
der S-Finanzgruppe mbH & Co. KG) have agreed to the acquisition of the State shares of around
81% of the Landesbank Berlin Holding AG with effect from 1 January 2007. By 31 December 2007
the above mentioned companies raised their shares up to 99%. On 25 April 2012 the extraordinary
Shareholders Meeting of Landesbank Berlin Holding AG adopted a resolution for assignment of
shares from the minority shareholder to the main shareholder, the Erwerbsgesellschaft der S-
Finanzgruppe mbH & Co. KG. This resolution took effect on 1 August 2012.

Since 10 December 2010 a profit transfer agreement between Berlin Hyp and the major shareholder
Landesbank Berlin AG has become into effect. As determined by the extraordinary Shareholders
Meeting of 9 December 2010, in January 2011 Landesbank Berlin accomplished a Sqgeeze-Out of
minority shareholders and obtained the 100% majority of Berlin Hyp. Furthermore, a domination
agreement between Berlin Hyp and its sole Shareholder Landesbank Berlin AG has become into
effect since 31 August 2012.

Letter of Comfort (Patronatserklarung)

As a parent company, Landesbank Berlin AG has issued a letter of comfort (Patronatserklarung) for
Berlin Hyp, which was published in its Annual Report 2012. In line with this, Landesbank Berlin AG
ensures that Berlin Hyp can meet its obligations, with the exception of political risks, in the amount of
its (calculated) investment ratio.
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6.5 Dependence

As a share company that is 100%-owned by the Landesbank Berlin AG, Berlin Hyp is a dependent
company of Landesbank Berlin AG for the purpose of §17 German Stock Corporation Act
(Aktiengesetz).

Landesbank Berlin AG is 100%-owned by Landesbank Berlin Holding AG which in turn is majority
owned by the Erwerbsgesellschaft der S-Finanzgruppe mbH & Co KG. In consequence, the
Erwerbsgesellschaft der S-Finanzgruppe mbH & Co KG could exert influence indirectly on Berlin Hyp.
According to § 17 German Stock Corporation Act Berlin Hyp is also indirectly dependent on the
Erwerbsgesellschaft der S-Finanzgruppe mbH & Co KG.

6.6 Significant Contracts

Since 10 December 2010 a profit transfer agreement between Berlin Hyp and then major shareholder
Landesbank Berlin AG has become into effect. Furthermore a domination agreement according to
§ 291 paragraph 1 German Stock Corporation Act between Berlin Hyp and the present sole
Shareholder Landesbank Berlin AG as controlling enterprise has become into effect since 31 August
2012.

6.7 Trend Information
Statement of "No Material Adverse Change"

There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of Berlin Hyp since 31 December 2012
(the date of the last published audited annual financial statement).

6.8 Management and Supervisory Bodies

As a German stock corporation, Berlin Hyp has a two-tier board system: the board of managing
directors is responsible for the management of the Bank and the representation of the Bank with
respect to third parties; the supervisory board is responsible for determining the number of managing
directors who are member of the board of managing directors and their appointment. A further
governing body of Berlin Hyp is the shareholders meeting (Hauptversammlung). The responsibilities
of these governing bodies are subject to the German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz) and Berlin
Hyp’s articles of association.

6.8.1 Board of managing Directors

Pursuant to the articles of association of Berlin Hyp, the board of managing directors consists of at
least three members. The board of managing directors currently consists of the following persons:

Gero Bergmann
Roman Berninger
Bernd Morgenschweis

Principal activities inside of Berlin Hyp as of 31 December 2012:
Gero Bergmann (Sales, Staff Section Real Estate Finance, Treasury, Corporate Communications)

Roman Berninger (Board of Management Service/Legal, Banking Operations, Finance/Controlling,
Organisation/IT)

Bernd Morgenschweis (Human Resources, Internal Audit, Loans, Loan Management Real Estate,
Risk Management, Valuation, Money Laundering, Compliance

Principal activities outside of Berlin Hyp as of 31 December 2012: none.
Berlin Hyp is represented by at least two members of the board of managing directors.
6.8.2 Supervisory Board

Pursuant to Berlin Hyp AG'’s articles of association, the supervisory board consists of nine members,
six of which are to be elected by the shareholders’ meeting and three of which are to be elected by
the employees.
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The supervisory board currently consists of the following persons:
Name Principal activity as of 22 March 2013

Jan Bettink

(Chairman) Member of the board of managing directors of

Landesbank Berlin AG

Dr. Johannes Evers Chairman of the board of managing directors of Landesbank

(Beputy Chairman) Berlin Holding AG and Landesbank Berlin AG

René Wulff Bank officer (employee’s representative)

(Deputy Chairman) Member of the works council of Berlin-Hannoversche
Hypothekenbank AG

Dr. h.c. Axel Berger Vice President of the German Financial Reporting
Enforcement Panel, Berlin, Auditor, Tax consultant

Hans Jirgen Kulartz Member of the board of managing directors of
Landesbank Berlin AG

Martin K. Mller Member of the board of managing directors of
Landesbank Berlin Holding AG and Landesbank Berlin
AG

Carsten Nowy Bank officer (employee’s representative) Deputy Chair of
the works council of Berlin-Hannoversche
Hypothekenbank AG

Jana Pabst Bank officer (employee’s representative) Chair of the
works council of Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank
AG

Dr. Thomas Veit Former Member of the board of managing directors of
Landesbank Berlin Holding AG and Landesbank Berlin
AG

The election of the members of the supervisory board through the shareholders’ meeting shall be for
the duration of five years pursuant to § 102 paragraph 1 German Stock Companies Act.

Address of the Board of Managing Directors and the Supervisory Board

The board of managing directors and the supervisory board may be contacted at Berlin Hyp's
Address Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft, Budapester Strasse 1, 10787
Berlin, Federal Republic of Germany.

6.8.3 Shareholders’ Meeting (Hauptversammlung)

The ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting is convened by the board of managing directors or by the
supervisory board.

6.8.4 Cover Assets Trustee

The following persons are currently appointed to act as cover assets trustees (Treuhander
Deckungsregister und Verwalter Refinanzierungsregister (since 1 June 2012)) with wide
responsibilities in monitoring the compliance by the Bank with the provisions of the Pfandbrief Act
and, in particular, the sufficiency of the assets which secure or "cover" the outstanding Pfandbriefe:

Ulrich Preuss (until 31 December 2012)
Christian Ax (since 01 January 2013, Deputy until 31 December 2012)
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Philip Warner (Deputy)
Josef Baiz (Deputy since 01 January 2013)

6.8.5 Conflict of interests

There are no potential conflicts of interests between any duties to Berlin Hyp of the members of the
board of managing directors and the supervisory board and their private interests and/or their other
duties.

6.9 Major shareholders

Berlin Hyp is 100% owned by Landesbank Berlin AG, which in turn is 100% owned by Landesbank
Berlin Holding AG in which the Erwerbsgesellschaft der S-Finanzgruppe holds the majority.

6.10 Financial Information concerning Berlin Hyp’s Assets and Liabilities, Financial Position
and Profits and Losses

6.10.1 Historical Financial Information
The following documents form part of this Prospectus:

— balance sheet, income statement, notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, the
Management Report 2011 of Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft and
the auditor’s report for the financial year ended 31 December 2011; cash flow statement for
the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and the auditor’'s certificate (incorporated by
reference into this Prospectus on page 294).

— balance sheet, income statement, notes to the financial statements, cash flow statement and
equity statement, the Management Report 2012 of Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank
Aktiengesellschaft and the auditor's report for the financial year ended
31 December 2012 (Annex to this Prospectus).

6.10.2 Financial statements

The following table sets out in summary form the balance sheet of Berlin Hyp AG, which has been
extracted from the audited unconsolidated financial statements of Berlin Hyp AG for the financial
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012, respectively.

Assets Liabilities
in Mio. € 2012 2011 | in Mio. € 2012 2011
Claims against banking 2853 3647 | Liabilities to banking institutions 11554 12462
institutions
21458 23009 | Liabilities to customers 7818 8254
Claims against Customers
Securitised Liabilties 13275 16108
Debentures and other 9721 11739
fixed-interestsecurities Subordinated Liabilities 357 358
173* 161*
Residual assets Fund for general banking risks 41 0
Residual Liabilities 329* 543*
Equity 831 831
Total assets 34205 38556 | Total liabilities 34205 38556

* unaudited information, derived from historical financial information

The following table sets out in summary form the income statement of Berlin Hyp AG, which has been
extracted from the audited unconsolidated financial statements of Berlin Hyp AG for the financial
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012, respectively.
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in Mio. € 2012 2011 Change

Interest Income 857.3 1006.7 -14.8%*
Expenditure 641.8 791.1 -18.9%*
Net Interest Income 215.8 216.3 -0.2%
Net commission Income 11.3 22.2 -49.1%
Net interest Income and commission Income 227.1 238.5 -4.8%
General operating expenditure

a) Staff expenditure 39.2 37.3 5.1%

b)  Other operating expenditure 37.4 28.2 32.6%

c) Depreciations and valuation adjustments
on intangible investment assets and tangible assets

Operating Expenditure 5.9 5.2 13.5%
Other operating revenue/expenses 82.5 70.7 16.7%
Risk Provisioning 5.5 -8.1 -
Operating result after risk provisioning 52.6 -29.9 -
Profits transferred on the basis of the profit transfer 202.7 129.8 56.2%
agreement
Net income for the year 125.8 105.4 19.4%
0.0 0.0 -

* unaudited information, derived from historical financial
information

The following table sets out in summary the capitalisation of Berlin Hyp AG which has been extracted
from the audited unconsolidated financial statements of Berlin Hyp for the financial years ended
31 December 2011 and 2012, respectively.

in Mio. € 31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Liabilities to banking institutions 11554 12462
Registered Pfandbriefe issued 306 337
Public registered Pfandbriefe issued 241 318
Other Liabilities 11007 11808
Liabilities to customers 7818 8254
Registered Pfandbriefe issued 3376 3587
Public registered Pfandbriefe issued 1562 1551
Other Liabilities 2880 3116
Securitised Liabilities 13275 16108
Pfandbriefe issued 7657 8369
Public Pfandbriefe issued 3322 5340
Other debentures issued 2296 2399
Prepaid income 43 67
Subordinated Liabilities 357 358
Profit-sharing rights capital 0 0
Fund for general banking risks 41 0
Equity 831 831
Subscribed capital 753 753
Capital reserve 53 53
Profit reserves

a) Statutory reserve 22 22

b)  Other profit reserves 0 0
Balance sheet profit 2 2
Trust Liabilities 0 7
Other Liabilities 176 353
Provisioning reserves 110 116
Total Liabilities 34205 38556
Contingent Liabilities 48 66
Irrevocable loan commitments 957 773

Save as disclosed herein, there has been no material negative change in the capitalisation of Berlin
Hyp AG since 31 December 2012.

6.10.3 Prospects

Assessment of the Economic Situation

The global economic climate remains unstable. Europe is showing signs of a recession brought on by
budgetary consolidation packages. The recession is comparatively mild, however, as liquidity policy
remains generous, cyclical exaggerations of the situation were already corrected last year and weak
domestic demand has been somewhat offset by improvements in net exports.
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Germany will record only moderate growth in gross domestic product again in 2013. With a
comparatively comfortable backlog of orders, increasingly stable employment levels, high financial
reserves in the real economy and the continued ability to offer competitive prices, Germany is
enjoying markedly better economic development than the rest of the Eurozone.

The European Central Bank has made allowances for the debt situation in the peripheral European
countries and is maintaining its support to them while taking into account the associated risks for the
banking sector. The inflation risk remains manageable in spite of ample liquidity. In Germany, inflation
will no longer remain below average for the Eurozone, but it is also unlikely to take any major leaps in
the opposite direction. This has not yet led to the successful long-term easing of the sovereign debt
problem, however. This is likely to result in increased risk premiums for the less competitive countries,
alongside increased demand for German bonds.

The loan business remains difficult. The situation is shaped by higher equity requirements. Also,
increased liquidity requirements are a factor to be taken into account. The interest rate curve remains
flat in relation to low prime interest rates, which in turn leads to diminished earnings opportunities from
maturity transformation. The promise of intervention by the European Central Bank has had a
significant influence on the restriction of the risk premiums between banks. Some doubts remain
concerning the practicability of these measures, however, meaning that it will be necessary to allow
for further expansion. The European financing market will face a wave of expiring real estate loans in
the coming years. New banking regulations will also restrict loan issuing options, meaning that banks
alone will be unable to close the financing gap. Insurance companies and debt funds which are
currently being debated will not be able to ease the strain much either. New forms of cooperation
between equity suppliers and financial institutions are an option; the »arranger« function is becoming
an increasingly important component of business models.

Business Development

Given its solid shareholder background, the successful refinancing strategy and its experienced and
motivated employees, Berlin Hyp is well prepared to face the future in this challenging environment
and will actively exploit all business potential that arises. The Bank plans to further consolidate its
position as the leading real estate finance provider in Germany.

Alongside the Bank’s unchanged strategic focus within commercial real estate concentrating on
financing investors throughout Germany and providing individual financing structures with risk-
appropriate pricing, Berlin Hyp also plans to further consolidate its role as a partner and competence
centre for the Sparkassen (German savings banks). Financing in selected foreign markets will be
further developed with the aim of ensuring a well-balanced portfolio mixture.

The transaction volume in the domestic real estate market increased year-on-year, with a crucial
contribution in particular from major portfolio deals. An unusually strong final quarter in the year led to
a 9 % increase in the commercial sector, while the residential sector experienced a hike of over 80 %.
Strong demand meant another decline in yields, particularly in the most attractive cities. Alongside the
continuing sovereign debt and Euro crisis, the future development of the German real estate market
will be shaped by the economic environment. Generally speak-ing, no significant turnover increase is
expected for 2013.Despite continuing strong competition on the financing market, the Bank's aim for
2013 is to increase new business volume. In preparation for future equity requirements, the Bank
implemented equity optimization measures in 2012.

Higher quality and yield requirements mean that these led to a drop in new business volume.
Alongside the targeted rejection of bad loans, outstanding extensions and portfolio quality
improvement measures were used that resulted in a proportional reduction in the capital burden. The
success of these measures together with further relief on the level of the LBB Group meant that there
was no need for the synthetic outsourcing that had been planned for Berlin Hyp. Regulatory
requirements are likely to place further burdens on the Bank's business activities in 2013.

Berlin Hyp already provides German savings banks with a real estate-specific package of products

and services. The »Real Estate Finance Domestic« sales unit provides services and advice to the
German savings banks on matters concerning the S-Group. The Bank has been and is developing
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special products to meet the relevant investment requirements. Berlin Hyp and LBB have jointly
developed what are known as real estate promissory notes. This investment product provides those
Group members that are part of the Sparkasse finance group with the opportunity to participate in
first-rate real estate financing, secured through German residential real estate. The aim is to enable
the members of the Group to have improved access to the Bank’s expertise and market penetration in
the future. Berlin Hyp also acts as financing partner in large-volume transactions. If required, the Bank
can also work within a syndicate, both as syndicate leader and as underwriting bank. In addition, we
value properties outside the field of business of the respective savings bank. The Bank plans to
further expand this collaboration with the savings bank sector. The Bank is also working to intensify all
of its business relationships with real estate customers by developing the relevant product portfolio.
Appropriate projects for the real estate industry are currently at the implementation stage and will be
brought to market in 2013.

Berlin Hyp has based its existing planning on economic assumptions regarding economic, labour
market and interest rate developments. This planning was approved in the fourth quarter of 2012,
which means that it does not yet encompass the potential changes that may emerge from the
recommendations made on 3 December 2012 at the Verbandsvorsteherkonferenz, the board
consisting of the chairpersons of the regional Sparkasse associations and the chairpersons of the
German Savings Bank Association (DSGV), concerning the future focus of Berlin Hyp. The
recommendation provides an excellent opportunity to present the Bank to an even broader customer
pool and to the German savings banks as a competent, reliable partner for commercial real estate
financing. A detailed statement will be made in this regard in 2013.

Against this backdrop, Berlin Hyp expects to see a moderate rise in its loan portfolio in 2013. Public
sector lending will be further reduced on a strategic basis. Securities will also be reduced slightly.

There will be a moderate increase in net interest income in the core business of real estate financing,
driven in particular by the growing volume of new business. Developments offsetting this are to be
expected as a result of the declining balance sheet total, an increase in sensitivity to margins in
customer business and against the backdrop of the flat interest rate curve that is limiting maturity
transformation. Commission income will benefit from the growing volume of new business.

In line with its planning, Berlin Hyp expects operating expenditure to be lower than in 2012, as one-off
effects of a similar magnitude to those experienced in 2012 are not forecast for 2013. The cost-
income ratio must be maintained at a low level. This remains a challenging goal, not least due to the
anticipated additional burdens resulting from initiated and/or planned projects. In addition, the effects
of the potential, though not yet fully decided, changes to Group structure in the LBB may influence
results due to project costs.

The Bank seeks high customer satisfaction in contrast to comparable real estate finance providers.
Cost leadership represents an additional objective. In contrast to 2012, which was marked by
liquidations, risk provisioning in the lending business will again tend towards risk-provisioning
expenditure. With regard to securities, value appreciations caused by credit spreads are not expected
to be on the same scale this year as in 2012.

The implementation of the rules regarding Basel Il will bring about far-reaching changes with regard
to refinancing and liquidity management in the long term. Berlin Hyp is prepared for this, even in
consideration of the planned growth of its customer business and taking into account the profitability
component, and is in a position to comply with the liquidity standards and equity ratios required when
the regulations come into force.

Thanks also to its successful funding activity in the past financial year, the Bank is set to enjoy a
sound liquidity position in 2013.

Berlin Hyp successfully met the targets of the results planning set out for 2012.

Overall Statement
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While 2012 was an exceptionally good business year as a result of numerous specific factors, in 2013
the focus will be on the reorganisation of the LBB Group. Volatility on the capital and finance markets
will remain high. Only a very limited outlook is possible against this backdrop. However, Berlin Hyp
still anticipates that we will be able to continue on our steady course and see further positive
development in customer-based business, and that the Bank will continue to have a sound liquidity
position with sufficient liquidity for room to manoeuvre. The Bank aims to build on the excellent profit
transfer results for 2012 in the coming year and to generate double-digit returns on equity (before
taxes and profit transfer). The changes to LBB's Group structure mentioned above and the
consequences for the operating business, which are not yet quantifiable, will however pose a
challenge. The relevant result can be expected to increase in 2014, even against the backdrop of the
further increased collaboration with the German savings banks.

6.10.4 Auditing of historical financial information

The unconsolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012,
respectively, have been audited by PwC, who has issued an unqualified auditor’s report in each case.
PwC has also audited the Cash Flow Statements Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank
Aktiengesellschaft for 2011 and 2012.

6.10.5 Governmental, legal and arbitration proceedings

The Bank conducts a large number of collection procedures in regard to cancelled fund loans. These
procedures need to be undertaken because the funds’ shareholders, in the legal form of a private
partnership or a partnership, are personally liable for paying the loan back to the Bank corresponding
to their proportional share in the company, and yet refuse to make payment.

The Federal Court of Justice has made numerous rulings confirming the shareholders’ personal
liability pursuant to Sections 128 and 130 German Commercial Code for loan contracts concluded
between banks and investment companies. Furthermore, in 2011, the Federal Court of Justice
decided in favour of the Bank insofar as that, when agreeing on personal proportional liability of the
shareholders, the liability amount is calculated from this proportion — in relation to the initial capital —
and that proceeds from the liquidation of discharged mortgages are not apportionable to a
shareholder’s personal liability.

The suits concluded in 2012 were nearly all decided in the Bank’s favour. Regarding the still
undecided cases, the Bank assumes that it will emerge victorious. At the same time, the Bank made
sufficient provision for general litigation risks.

Furthermore, no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings have been conducted during the last
12 months that have or recently had a tangible impact on the financial situation or profitability of the
Bank. According to our current knowledge, there are no pending, initiated or anticipated litigations,
which could have a tangible impact on the financial position or profitability of the Bank.

6.10.6 Significant change in Berlin Hyp’s financial position

There has been no significant change in the financial position of Berlin Hyp since 31 December 2012
(the end of the last financial period for which financial information has been published).

6.11 Documents on Display

Copies of the following documents may be obtained without charge during normal business hours at
Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft, Budapester Strasse 1, 10787 Berlin,
Federal Republic of Germany:

— articles of association

— annual reports 2011 and 2012 including cash flow statement (which may also be inspected on
the website of the Bank (www.berlinhyp.de))

— a copy of the Prospectus (which may also be inspected on the website of the Bank
(www.berlinhyp.de) during the relevant offering period in relation to the offering of a series of
Notes)
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— any supplements to this Prospectus (which may also be inspected on the website of the Bank
(www.berlinhyp.de) during the relevant offering period in relation to offering of a series of
Notes)

In the case of Notes listed on the Berlin Stock Exchange or publicly offered in the Federal Republic of
Germany, the Final Terms will be displayed on the website of the Berlin Stock Exchange
(www.boerse-berlin.de). In the case of Notes listed on any other stock exchange or publicly offered in
one or more contracting states of the European Economic Area other than Germany, the applicable
Final Terms will be displayed on the website of BerlinHyp (www.berlinhyp.de).
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7. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES AND RELATED INFORMATION

The information contained in this part "Terms and Conditions of the Notes and Related Information”
includes the following parts relating to the terms and conditions of the Notes:

7.1

7.2.

7.3.

7.4

7.5

Description of the Programme and the Notes (including Pfandbriefe)

Terms and Conditions of the Notes and of the Pfandbriefe (English language version)

Terms and Conditions of the Notes and of the Pfandbriefe (German language version)

Form of Final Terms (Endgultige Bedingungen)

Form of Final Terms for increases of Series issued under Prospectuses dated earlier than

1 July 2012 (Muster — Endgultige Bedingungen zur Aufstockung von Serien, die unter
Prospekten vor dem 1. Juli 2012 begeben wurden)
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7.1 DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME AND THE NOTES (INCLUDING PFANDBRIEFE)

7.1.1 Description of the Programme
General

Under this € 25,000,000,000 Offering Programme, the Issuer may from time to time issue Notes
(including Pfandbriefe) to UniCredit Bank AG, Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank
Aktiengesellschaft and any additional dealer appointed under the Programme by the Issuer from time
to time (each a "Dealer”, and together, the "Dealers") which appointment may be for a specific issue
or on an ongoing basis.

The issuance of Notes under the Programme has been approved by resolution of the board of
managing directors dated 4 April 2006. The update of the Programme has been approved by
resolution of the board of managing directors 12 March 2013.

The maximum aggregate principal amount of all Notes at any one time outstanding under the
Programme will not exceed € 25,000,000,000. The Issuer may increase the amount of the
Programme from time to time.

Structure of Notes (including Pfandbriefe) to be issued under the Programme

The Programme provides for the issue of the following structures of Notes (including Pfandbriefe) by
the Issuer:

1. Notes and Pfandbriefe with a fixed rate of interest (fixed rate notes);
2. Notes and Pfandbriefe with a floating rate of interest (floating rate notes); and
3. Notes and Pfandbriefe with no periodic payment of interest (zero coupon notes).

A more detailed description of these structures is set out below under "7.1.2 Description of the Notes
(including Pfandbriefe)".

Placing and Distribution

The Notes may be distributed by way of public or private placements and, in each case, on a
syndicated or non-syndicated basis as agreed between the Issuer and the Dealer. The method of
distribution of each tranche will be stated in the applicable Final Terms.

Tranches

Notes will be issued in tranches. Each tranche will consist of Notes which are identical in all respects.
One or more tranches, which are expressed to be consolidated and forming a single series and
identical in all respects, but having different issue dates, interest commencement dates and issue
prices, may form a series of Notes. Further Notes may be issued as part of an existing series. The
specific terms of each tranche will be set forth in the Final Terms.

Currency

The Issuer may issue Notes in euro or in any other currency agreed between the Issuer and the
Dealer subject to compliance with all applicable legal or regulatory requirements.

Issue Price
Notes may be issued at an issue price which is at par or at a discount to, or premium over, par.
Paying Agents

Payments will be made in accordance with the Terms and Conditions. Normally, the Issuer acts as
Paying Agent even when the drawing takes place abroad, then at Berlin-Hannoversche
Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft, Budapester Strasse 1, 10787 Berlin, Federal Republic of
Germany. The Issuer will appoint a different Paying Agent if the relevant jurisdiction requires so and
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the name and address of such Paying Agent will be specified in the applicable Terms and Conditions
and/or the applicable Final Terms, as the case may be. The Issuer may appoint further paying agents
other than the Paying Agent referred to above and will give notice of any changes made to the Paying
Agents. The relevant Paying Agent(s) will be specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Underwriting

The Notes may be issued to UniCredit Bank AG and any additional dealer appointed under the
Programme from time to time, which appointment may be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis
and may be sold on a syndicated and non-syndicated basis pursuant to the respective subscription
agreement.

Subscription Agreement

In the case of Notes to be purchased by more than one Dealer, the Issuer will enter into a
subscription agreement with such Dealers for the purpose of underwriting. In the case of only one
Dealer, a Dealer Accession Letter will be signed if the relevant Dealer is not a Dealer under the
Programme. The underwriting Dealer(s) will receive a commission for the underwriting and placing of
the Notes, if agreed, and the details of such commission will be set forth in the applicable Final Terms,
if so required.

Calculation Agent

When a Calculation Agent is needed, the Issuer will as a rule act as such Calculation Agent, if not
otherwise agreed with the Dealer, even when the drawing takes place abroad, then at Berlin-
Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft, Budapester Strasse 1, 10787 Berlin, Federal
Republic of Germany. The Issuer will appoint a different Calculation Agent if the relevant jurisdiction
so requires or if it is so agreed between the Dealer and the Issuer and the name and address of such
Calculation Agent will be specified in the applicable Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final
Terms, as the case may be.

Admission to Trading

Application has been made to list and trade Notes to be issued under the Programme on the markets
of the Berlin Stock Exchange appearing on the list of regulated markets published by the European
Commission (Borse Berlin, regulierter Markt). The Programme provides that Notes may be listed on
other or further stock exchanges (including stock exchanges in other contracting states of the
European Economic Area). Notes may further be issued under the Programme without being listed on
any stock exchange.

Stock Exchange Listings

The Issuer will apply for issues to be admitted to German and European stock exchanges on an
ongoing basis, if this has been provided for in the applicable Final Terms.

Market Making

Information relating to market making, if any, will be set forth in the applicable Final Terms.
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7.1.2 Description of the Notes (including Pfandbriefe)
Description of the main features of the Notes

This section of the Prospectus "Description of the main features of the Notes" is an abstract
description of the varieties for structuring Notes which may be issued under the Programme of Berlin
Hyp as Issuer, offered or sold by the Issuer under the terms of this Prospectus and/or for which an
application may be made for admission to a regulated market of a securities exchange or for inclusion
in trading on a securities exchange.

It covers the following topics:

- Interest on the Notes

- Redemption of the Notes at maturity
- Early redemption of the Notes

- Denomination of the Notes

- Currency of the Notes

- Status and ranking of the Notes
- Form of the Notes

- ECB-Eligibility

- Issue of further Notes

- Substitution of the Issuer

- Governing law, place of performance, jurisdiction and limitation period.

The Notes are securitised liabilities of the Issuer. The issue of the Notes enables the Issuer to raise
debt capital on the capital markets. The liabilities are represented by the issue of one or more global
note(s) in bearer form. Definitive notes are not being issued by the Issuer. There are no restrictions on
the free transferibilty of the Notes.

The relevant terms and conditions of the Notes, which will govern the relationship between the
Issuer and the Holders, are attached to the relevant global note(s) and form an integral part of
such global note(s). The form of terms and conditions (other than for Notes that increase an
existing series of Notes issued under a prospectus of the Issuer dated earlier than 1 July 2012)
is set out below under part 7.2 and 7.3 of this Prospectus. The relevant terms and conditions
of Notes for an increase of an existing series of Notes issued under a prospectus of the Issuer
dated earlier than 1 July 2012 are not set out in this Prospectus but will be made available for
an investor of each increase to be issued under this Prospectus as a separate document. Such
relevant terms and conditions will be published on the Website of the Issuer under
www.berlinhyp.de, provided that the relevant Final Terms will be published also. The Final
Terms constitute the regulatory document and indicate which terms and conditions are
applicable. Section 7.4 sets out the Final Terms for Notes or Pfandbriefe to be issued under
this prospectus whereas section 7.5 sets out the Final Terms for increases of Series issued
under Prospectuses dated earlier than 1 July 2012.

The following description is an abstract presentation of the following possible structures of the Notes
to be issued under the terms of this Prospectus and does not refer to a specific issue of Notes which
will be issued under the terms of this Prospectus.

Potential investors should note that information relating to a specific issue of Notes that is not yet

known at the date of this Prospectus, including but not limited to the issue price, the date of the
issue, the level of the interest rate (if the Notes bear interest), the type of interest payable (if the Notes
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bear interest), the maturity date, the appliance of any Issuer’s or Noteholder’s rights of termination
and other details significantly affecting the economic assessment of the Notes is not contained in this
section of this Prospectus but in the relevant Final Terms and the Terms and Conditions applying to
the Notes, if set out in this Prospectus. Consequently, the following description does not contain
all information relating to the Notes. Any investment decision by an investor should therefore
be made only on the basis of full information on the Issuer and on the Notes to be offered
which is set out in this Prospectus, the relevant Final Terms for such Notes when read
together with this Prospectus, any supplement thereto and the relevant Conditions applicable
to the Notes, if set out in this Prospectus.

Interest on the Notes

The Offer Programme of Berlin Hyp as Issuer provides for the issue of Notes with a fixed rate of
interest (fixed rate notes), Notes with a floating rate of interest (floating rate notes), Notes with a fixed
and floating rate of interest (fixed to floating rate notes), Notes with a floating and a fixed rate of
interest (floating to fixed rate notes), Notes with an inverse/reverse floating rate of interest
(invservelreverse floating rate notes) and Notes with no periodic payment of interest (zero coupon
notes).

Notes with a fixed rate of interest (Fixed Rate Notes)

In the case of Notes with a fixed rate of interest (the "Fixed Rate Notes"), the rate of interest on the
basis of which periodic interest payments are calculated will be specified before the issue date of the
Notes by the Issuer. The interest rate specified is based in principle on the credit rating of the Issuer
applying directly prior to the issue date of the Notes, the maturity of the Notes and the interest rates
for raising debt capital currently applying on the capital market.

Notes with a floating rate of interest

In the case of Notes with a floating rate of interest (the "Floating Rate Notes"), the interest rate on
the basis of which the amount of interest payable to the Holders is calculated is not specified at the
issue date of the Notes. Instead, the rate at which interest accrues changes over time and only the
relevant variable on which the rate of interest on the Notes is based (the reference rate) is specified.
The reference rate may be either the EURIBOR® or the LIBOR®. Euro Interbank Offered Rate
(EURIBOR®) is a daily interest rate at which Eurozone banks offer to lend unsecured funds to other
banks for a term of 1, 2 and 3 weeks and on a monthly basis for a term of 1 month through
12 months. London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR®) is an interest rate at which banks of the London
market offer to lend unsecured funds to other banks in the London market to be determined on a daily
basis at 11 am London time for a term of 1, 2 and 3 weeks and on a monthly basis for a term of 1
month through 12 months. Each reference rate reflects the normal terms currently applying on the
capital market for raising funds in the form of debt capital for a period of between one to 12 months.
Reference rates are subject to fluctuations and regularly adjust in response to the relevant
parameters on the capital market. The rate of interest on Floating Rate Notes may therefore change
(i.e. rise or fall) many times over the term of the Notes. If the relevant reference rate rises over the
term of the Notes, then the amount of interest payable on the Notes will also increase. If the relevant
reference rate falls over the term of the Notes, then the amount of interest payable on the Notes will
also decrease.

Floating Rate Notes are linked to a reference rate and may be structured in accordance with the
following variants: (i) the relevant reference rate represents the rate of interest applicable to the Notes
on a one to one basis or (i) a fixed rate of interest (margin) is added (premium) to the relevant
reference rate depending on the credit rating of the Issuer, the maturity of the Notes and the interest
rates currently applying on the capital market for raising debt capital, i.e. the relevant reference rate
and the premium together produce the rate of interest applicable to the Notes or (iii) a fixed rate of
interest (margin) is deducted (discount) from the relevant reference rate depending on the maturity of
the Notes and the interest rates currently applying on the capital market for raising debt capital, i.e.
the relevant reference rate after deducting the discount produces the rate of interest applicable to the
Notes or (iv) the rate of interest based on the relevant reference rate is limited to an upper maximum
interest rate determined in advance (cap), i.e. even if the relevant reference rate were to be higher
than the maximum interest rate, only the maximum interest rate would be applicable to the Notes for
the relevant interest period or (v) the rate of interest based on the relevant reference rate is limited to
a lower minimum interest rate determined in advance (floor), i.e. even if the relevant reference rate
were to be lower than the minimum interest rate, the minimum interest rate would be applicable to the
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Notes for the relevant interest period or (vi) the rate of interest based on the relevant reference rate is
limited to an upper maximum interest rate and a lower minimum interest rate determined in advance
(collared floater), i.e. the rate of interest is never higher than the maximum interest rate and never
lower than the minimum interest rate and within that interest rate corridor is dependent on the
changes in the relevant reference rate or (vii) the reference interest rate multiplied by a factor
produces the rate of interest applicable to the Notes.

Floating Rate Notes may also be structured as constant maturity swap linked Notes ("CMS Floating
Rate Notes") in which case the interest rate at which interest accrues changes over time and only the
relevant variable on which the interest rate applicable to the Notes is based (the basic rate of interest)
is specified. The basic rate of interest is also a capital market rate of interest, similarly to the reference
interest rate described above, with maturities of between one to 20 years (e.g. constant maturity swap
rates (CMS)). Such Notes may also be structured in accordance with the same variants set out in i) to
vii) above.

Furthermore, Floating Rate Notes may be structured as fixed to floating rate Notes ("Fixed to
Floating Rate Notes"). Fixed to Floating Rate Notes bear a fixed and a floating rate of interest. The
interest rate is specified at the issue date for a particular period and for particular interest payment
dates (Fixed Rate Notes), while the accrual of interest for the remaining period is linked to a relevant
reference rate of interest and may change from one interest payment date to the next (Floating Rate
Notes). Fixed to Floating Rate Notes are therefore a combination of a Fixed Rate Note and a Floating
Rate Note. If the Floating Rate Notes firstly bear a floating rate of interest and following a fixed rate of
interest they are structured as floating to fixed rate Notes ("Floating to Fixed Rate Notes")

In addition, Floating Rate Notes may be structured as inverse/reverse floating rate Notes
("Inverse/Reverse Floating Rate Notes"). The rate of interest for Inverse/Reverse Floating Rate
Notes is calculated by the substraction of a floating reference rate from a fixed rate. Accordingly, the
interest income of Inverse/Reverse Floating Rate Notes is calculated in reverse proportion to the
reference rate: if the reference rate increases, interest income decreases whereas it increases if the
reference rate decreases.

Notes with no periodic payment of interest (Zero Coupon Notes)

In the case of Notes with no periodic payment of interest ("Zero Coupon Notes"), the interest
accrued takes the exclusive form of the redemption of the Zero Coupon Notes at maturity at a higher
amount than the issue price. The Noteholder of Zero Coupon Notes therefore receives "interest" as a
one-time payment at maturity in the form of a redemption amount that is higher than the issue price.
No periodic interest payments are made during the term of the Zero Coupon Notes.

Due dates for interest payments and calculation of the amount of interest (except for Zero
Coupon Notes)

Interest payments may be made quarterly, semi-annually or annually. The amount of interest payable
in respect of the Notes is calculated by applying the relevant interest rate for the interest period
concerned and the day count fraction to the par value of the Notes.

Yield

In order to calculate the yield on the Notes, all of the payment flows relating to the Notes must be
included (issue price, all interest payments and any transaction costs). If the Notes pay a floating rate
of interest for part or all of their term, it is not possible to calculate the yield at the issue date of the
Notes. In this event, the yield can only be determined when the amounts of all the payments (interest
payments and redemption amount) are known.

Redemption of the Notes at maturity

Notes issued under the terms of this Prospectus have a maturity which is determined at the issue
date. Prior to the issue date of the Notes, the Issuer determines the maturity date on which it is
obliged to redeem the Notes and the amount at which it is obliged to redeem them.
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Early redemption of the Notes

The Notes may include provisions under which they may be terminated by the Issuer (Issuer's right of
termination) or by the Holders (Holders' right of termination without the occurrence of a termination
event or due to the occurrence of a termination event). In the event of termination by the Issuer or by
the Holders, the Issuer is obliged to redeem the Notes early and at an amount specified at the issue
date of the Notes. In such cases the Notes are redeemed prior to their stated maturity date and all
rights and obligations arising under the Notes expire.

Issuer’s right of termination without the occurrence of a termination event

The Issuer's rights of termination (subject to notice) are rights of termination on the basis of which the
Issuer may terminate the Notes without the occurrence of a termination event. The consequence of
such termination is that the Issuer is obliged to redeem the Notes prior to maturity on the date and at
the amount specified on the issue date. At the issue date of the Notes, the Issuer specifies dates on
which it may terminate the Notes and on which it is obliged to redeem the Notes once they have been
terminated. In order for such a right of termination to be exercised effectively, the Issuer is obliged to
publish the notice of termination on the announcement date in accordance with the provisions for
announcements. The exercise of a right of termination, the date and amount at which the Notes are to
be redeemed early by the Issuer are communicated to the Holders by means of an announcement.

Issuer's right of termination due to the occurrence of atermination event

The Issuer's rights of termination due to the occurrence of a termination event are rights of termination
on the basis of which the Issuer may terminate the Notes on the occurrence of an event specified in
advance. The consequence of such termination is that the Issuer is obliged to redeem the Notes on a
date and at an amount specified at the issue date of the Notes. At the issue date of the Notes, the
Issuer specifies the events on the occurrence of which it is entitled in principle to terminate the Notes.
In order for such a right of termination to be exercised effectively, the Issuer is obliged to publish the
notice of termination and must observe requirements for the form of the termination. The exercise of a
right of termination, the date and amount at which the Notes are to be redeemed early by the Issuer
and the event following which the Issuer is entitled from its point of view to declare an extraordinary
termination are communicated to the Holders by means of an announcement.

An example of an event giving the right to termination is a change in tax law occurring after the issue
date as a result of which the Issuer is required to withhold or deduct taxes and therefore to pay
additional amounts to the Holders due to particular provisions.

Holders' right of termination without the occurrence of a termination event

The Holders' rights of termination (subject to notice) are rights of termination on the basis of which the
Holders may terminate the Notes without the occurrence of a termination event. The consequence of
such termination by Holders is that the Issuer is obliged to redeem the Notes prior to maturity on the
date and at the amount specified on the issue date at the issue date of the Notes. At the issue date of
the Notes, the Issuer specifies dates on which the Holders may terminate the Notes and on which the
Issuer is obliged to redeem the Notes once the Holders have exercised their right of termination.

Holders' right of termination due to the occurrence of a termination event

The Holders' rights of termination due to the occurrence of a termination event are rights of
termination on the basis of which the Holders may terminate the Notes on the occurrence of an event
specified in advance. The consequence of such termination by the Holders is that the Issuer is
obliged to redeem the Notes on a date and at an amount so specified. In order for such right of
termination to be exercised effectively, the Holders are obliged to give notice of such termination to
the Issuer in writing (8 126 of the German Civil Code (BGB)) upon the occurrence of a termination
event.

An example of an event giving the right to termination is the failure of the Issuer to make a payment of
capital or interest within 15 days after the relevant due date.
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Repurchase

Notwithstanding the provisions governing the redemption or early redemption of the Notes, the Issuer
is entitled to purchase all or some of the Notes at any time and at any price in the market or otherwise
and to hold, cancel or resell them at its discretion.

Minimum Denomination of the Notes

Notes issued under the Programme must have a denomination or par value of at least Euro 1,000 (or
its equivalent in other currency). However, Notes which shall be admitted to trading on a regulated
market of a stock exchange located in the European Economic Area must have a minimum
denomination of EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in other currency).

Currency of the Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes in euro or in any other currency agreed between the Issuer and the
Dealer subject to compliance with all applicable legal or regulatory requirements.

Status and ranking of the Notes
Notes (other than Pfandbriefe) may be issued on a subordinated or unsubordinated basis:

The obligations under the unsubordinated Notes (other than Pfandbriefe) constitute unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu (ranking equal) among themselves and
pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated present and future obligations of the Issuer
unless such other obligations take priority by mandatory provisions of law. The obligations of the
Issuer in case of subordinated Notes constitute unsecured and subordinated obligations. In the event
of dissolution, liquidation or bankruptcy of the Issuer, the obligations under the subordinated Notes
may be satisfied only after non-subordinated claims of creditors have been satisfied so that in any
such event no amounts shall be payable in respect of such obligations until the claims of all
unsubordinated creditors of the Issuer shall have been satisfied in full.

Pfandbriefe:

The obligations under the Pfandbriefe constitute unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer ranking pari
passu among themselves. The Pfandbriefe are covered in accordance with the Pfandbrief Act
(Pfandbriefgesetz) and rank at least pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated present
and future obligations of the Issuer under mortgage covered Pfandbriefe (Hypothekenfandbriefe) or
public sector Pfandbriefe (Offentliche Pfandbriefe), as the case may be.

Form of Notes

The Notes are represented by the issue of one or more global note(s) in bearer form. Definitive notes
will not be issued by the Issuer. The relevant terms and conditions of the Notes, which will govern the
relationship between the Issuer and the Holders, are attached to the relevant global note(s) together
with the relevant Final Terms and both documents form an integral part of such global note(s).

The Notes will not be issued in the form of registered notes (Namensschuldverschreibungen) but as
notes in bearer form only within the meaning of §793 of the German Civii Code (BGB)
(Inhaberschuldverschreibungen).

ECB-Eligibility

Assets that are pledged to the Eurosystem as security for its central bank credit operations are so-
called "collateral". To be accepted, these assets must fulfill certain criteria, i.e. be "ecb-eligible". In
order to fulfill one of the various criterias, Notes must be issued (i) in new global note format (NGN)
and deposited with one of the international central securities depositaries (ICSDs) as common
safekeeper; or (i) in classical global note format (CGN) and deposited directly with Clearstream
Banking AG. However, the issue in NGN or CGN format does not necessarily mean that the Notes will
be recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day credit operations by
the Eurosystem either upon issue or at any or all times during their life. Such recognition will depend
upon satisfaction of further Eurosystem eligibility criteria.
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Issue of further Notes

The Issuer reserves the right to issue further Notes with the same terms without the consent of the
Holders in such a way that they will be consolidated with the Notes issued previously, form a uniform
series with them and increase their total par value.

Substitution of the Issuer

In certain circumstances and provided the Issuer is not in default with any payment of principal and/or
interest in respect of the Notes, a subsidiary of the Issuer — may replace BerlinHyp — in its capacity as
Issuer at any time and without the consent of the Holders with respect to all rights and obligations
arising under or in connection with the Notes.

Governing law, place of performance, jurisdiction and limitation period

The Notes, as to form and content, and all rights and obligations of the Holders and the Issuer, shall
be governed by German law. Place of performance shall be Berlin.

The relevant prescription limitation period for the limitation of claims arising from the Notes is ten
years.
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7.2 TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES AND OF THE PFANDBRIEFE - ENGLISH
LANGUAGE VERSION

Please note that the following Terms and Conditions of the Notes and of the Pfandbriefe are not
applicable for the increase of a serie of series of Notes or Pfandbriefe which have been issued
under a prospectus dated earlier than 1 July 2012. The terms and conditions of Notes or
Pfandbriefe for an increase of an existing series of Notes or Pfandbriefe issued under a
prospectus of the Issuer dated earlier than 1 July 2012 will be created as a separate document
on the terms and conditions contained in Section 7.1.2 (Description of the Notes (including
Pfandbriefe)). Such terms and conditions and will be identical with the terms and conditions of
the Notes or Pfandbriefe of the tranche which will be increased apart from the issue date, the
aggregate principal amount, the interest commencement date and the first interest payment
date.

7.2.1 Instructions for the use of the Terms and Conditions

The terms and conditions of the Notes and of the Pfandbriefe (the "Terms and Conditions of the
Securities") are set forth in the following 6 options:

Option | applies to Notes (other than Pfandbriefe) with a fixed rate of interest ("Fixed Rate Notes").

Option Il applies to Notes (other than Pfandbriefe) with a floating rate of interest ("Floating Rate
Notes").

Option 1l applies to Notes (other than Pfandbriefe) without periodic interest payments ("Zero Coupon
Notes").

Option IV applies to Pfandbriefe with a fixed rate of interest ("Fixed Rate Pfandbriefe").
Option V applies to Pfandbriefe with a floating rate of interest ("Floating Rate Pfandbriefe™).
Option VI applies to Pfandbriefe without periodic interest payments ("Zero Coupon Pfandbriefe").

Each set of Terms and Conditions of the Securities contains, for the relevant Option, in certain places
placeholders or potentially a variety of possible further variables for a provision. These are marked with
square brackets and corresponding comments.

The Final Terms will (i) determine which of the Option | through VI of the Terms and Conditions of the
Securities shall apply to the relevant Series of Notes, and will (ii) specify and complete the variables that
shall be applicable to such Series of Notes by completing the relevant tables pertaining to the chosen
Option contained in PART I of the Final Terms.

This section 7.2 is not applicable for the increase of a serie of series of Notes or Pfandbriefe which have been issued
under a prospectus dated earlier than 1 July 2012.
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7.2.2

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF NOTES (OTHER THAN PFANDBRIEFE)

Option I: Terms and Conditons for Fixed Rate Notes

(1)

)

§1
CURRENCY, DENOMINATION, FORM, CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

Currency; Denomination. This Series of Notes (the "Notes") of Berlin-Hannoversche
Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft (the "Issuer”) is being issued in [euro] [insert other
currency or currency unit agreed by the Issuer and the Dealer(s)] (the "Specified
Currency") in the aggregate principal amount [in the case the Global Note is a NGN insert:
(subject to 8§ 1(6))] of [insert aggregate principal amount] (in words: [insert aggregate
principal amount in words]) in [in one denomination] [denominations] of [insert Specified
Denomination(s)] (the "Specified Denomination[s]").

Form. The Notes are in bearer form and represented by one or more global notes (each, a
"Global Note").

[In the case of Notes which are represented by a Permanent Global Note insert:

©)

Permanent Global Note. The Notes are represented by a permanent Global Note (the
"Permanent Global Note") without coupons. The Permanent Global Note shall be signed by
authorised signatories of the Issuer. Definitive Notes and interest coupons will not be issued.]

[In the case of Notes which are initially represented by a Temporary Global Note insert:

©)
@)

(b)

(4)

Temporary Global Note — Exchange.

The Notes are initially represented by a temporary global note (the "Temporary Global
Note") without coupons. The Temporary Global Note will be exchangeable for Notes in [a]
Specified Denomination[s] represented by a permanent global note (the "Permanent Global
Note") without coupons. The Temporary Global Note and the Permanent Global Note shall
each be signed by authorised signatories of the Issuer. Definitive Notes and interest coupons
will not be issued.

The Temporary Global Note shall be exchangeable for the Permanent Global Note from a
date (the "Exchange Date") 40 days after the date of issue of the Temporary Global Note.
Such exchange shall only be made upon delivery of certifications to the effect that the
beneficial owner or owners of the Notes represented by the Temporary Global Note is not a
U.S. person (other than certain financial institutions or certain persons holding Notes through
such financial institutions) as required by U.S. tax law. Payment of interest on Notes
represented by a Temporary Global Note will be made only after delivery of such
certifications. A separate certification shall be required in respect of each such payment of
interest. Any such certification received on or after the 40th day after the date of issue of the
Temporary Global Note will be treated as a request to exchange such Temporary Global Note
pursuant to this subparagraph (b) of this § 1 (3). Any securities delivered in exchange for the
Temporary Global Note shall be delivered only outside of the United States (as defined in § 4

(3))]

Clearing System. Each Global Note representing the Notes will be kept in custody by or on
behalf of the Clearing System. "Clearing System" means [if more than one Clearing
System insert: each of] the following: [Clearstream Banking AG, Frankfurt am Main ("CBF")]
[Clearstream Banking société anonyme, Luxemburg ("CBL")] [and] [Euroclear Bank SA/NV
("Euroclear")][CBL and Euroclear, each an international central securities depositary
("ICSD") and, together, the international central securities depositaries ("ICSDs")] [,] [and]
[specify other Clearing System].

[In case of Notes kept in custody on behalf of ICDSs insert:

[In case the Global Note is a new global note insert: The Notes are issued in new global note
("NGN™) form and are kept in custody by a common safekeeper on behalf of both ICSDs.]
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[In case the Global Note is a classical global note insert: The Notes are issued in classical global
note ("CGN") form and are kept in custody by a common depositary on behalf of both ICSDs.]]

(5) Holder of Notes. "Holder" is any holder of a proportionate co-ownership or other beneficial
interest or right in the Notes.

[In case the Global Note is a NGN insert:

(6) Records of the ICSDs. The nominal amount of Notes represented by the Global Note shall be
the aggregate amount from time to time entered in the records of both ICSDs. The records of
the ICSDs (which expression means the records that each ICSD holds for its customers
which reflect the amount of such customer’s interest in the Notes) shall be conclusive
evidence of the nominal amount of Notes represented by the Global Note and, for these
purposes, a statement issued by a ICSD stating the nominal amount of Notes so represented
at any time shall be conclusive evidence of the records of the relevant ICSD at that time.

On any redemption or payment of an instalment or interest being made in respect of, or purchase and
cancellation of, any of the Notes represented by the Global Note the Issuer shall procure that details
of any redemption, payment or purchase and cancellation (as the case may be) in respect of the
Global Note shall be entered pro rata in the records of the ICSDs and, upon any such entry being
made, the nominal amount of the Notes recorded in the records of the ICSDs and represented by the
Global Note shall be reduced by the aggregate nominal amount of the Notes so redeemed or
purchased and cancelled or by the aggregate amount of such instalment so paid.

[In the case the Temporary Global Note is a NGN insert: On an exchange of a portion only of the
Notes represented by a Temporary Global Note, the Issuer shall procure that details of such
exchange shall be entered pro rata in the records of the ICSDs.]]

[In the case of unsubordinated Notes insert:

§2
STATUS

The obligations under the Notes constitute unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer
ranking pari passu among themselves and pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Issuer except for any obligations preferred by law.]

[In the case of subordinated Notes insert:

§2
STATUS

The obligations under the Notes constitute unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Issuer
ranking pari passu among themselves and pari passu with all other subordinated obligations of the
Issuer and, in the event of the dissolution, liquidation or insolvency or other proceedings for the
avoidance of insolvency of, or against, the Issuer, such obligations will be subordinated to the claims
of all unsubordinated creditors of the Issuer so that in any such event no amounts shall be payable
under such obligations until the claims of all unsubordinated creditors of the Issuer shall have been
satisfied in full. No Holder may set off his claims arising under the Notes against any claims of the
Issuer. No security of whatever kind is, or shall at any time be, provided by the Issuer or any other
person securing rights of the Holders under such Notes. No subsequent agreement may limit the
subordination pursuant to the provisions set out in this § 2 or amend the Maturity Date in respect of
the Notes to any earlier date or shorten any applicable notice period (Kiindigungsfrist). If the Notes
are redeemed before the Maturity Date otherwise than in the circumstances described in this § 2 [if
Early Redemption for Taxation Reasons applies insert: or in 8 5 (2)] or repurchased by the Issuer
otherwise than in accordance with the provisions of § 10(5a) sentence 6 German Banking Act (Kredit-
wesengesetz), then the amounts redeemed or paid must be returned to the Issuer irrespective of any
agreement to the contrary unless the amounts paid have been replaced by other liable capital
(haftendes Eigenkapital) of at least equal status within the meaning of the German Banking Act, or the
Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (Bundesanstalt fur Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) has
consented to such redemption or repurchase.]
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§3
INTEREST

(1) Rate of Interest and Interest Payment Dates. The Notes shall bear interest on their principal
amount per specified denomination[s] at the rate of [insert Rate of Interest] per cent. per
annum from (and including) [insert Interest Commencement Date] to (but excluding) the
Maturity Date (as defined in 8 5 (1)). Interest shall be payable in arrear on [insert Fixed
Interest Date or Dates] in each year, subject to adjustment in accordance with 8 4[(5)],
(each such date, an "Interest Payment Date").

The first payment of interest shall be made on [insert First Interest Payment Date], subject to
adjustment in accordance with § 4[(5)], [if First Interest Payment Date is not first anniversary of
Interest Commencement Date insert: and will amount to [insert amount] [if Initial Broken
Amount per aggregate principal amount insert: per aggregate principal amount] [if Initial Broken
Amount per Specified Denomination insert: per Note in a denomination of [insert first Specified
Denomination] and [insert further Initial Broken Amount(s) per further Specified
Denominations] per Note in a denomination of [insert further Specified Denominations]].

[If Maturity Date is not a Fixed Interest Date: Interest in respect of the period from [insert Fixed
Interest Date preceding the Maturity Date] (inclusive) to the Maturity Date (exclusive) will amount to
[insert amount] [if Final Broken Amount per aggregate principal amount insert: per aggregate
principal amount.] [if Final Broken Amount per Specified Denomination insert: per Note in a
denomination of [insert first Specified Denomination insert] and [insert further Final Broken
Amount(s) per further Specified Denominations] per Note in a denomination of [insert further
Specified Denominations].]

(2) Accrual of Interest. The Notes shall cease to bear interest from the expiry of the day
preceding the day on which they are due for redemption. If the Issuer shall fail to redeem the
Notes in full or in part on the due date for the final maturity, then the default rate® of interest
established by law? will accrue on the outstanding principal amount from the due date for
redemption until the expiry of the day preceding the day of the actual redemption of the
Notes.

3) Calculation of Interest for Partial Periods. If interest is required to be calculated for a period of
less than a full year, such interest shall be calculated on the basis of the Day Count Fraction
(as defined below).

4) Day Count Fraction, "Day Count Fraction" means, in respect of the calculation of an amount
of interest on any Note for any period of time (the "Calculation Period"):

[if Actual 365 or Actual/Actual insert: the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided
by 365 (or, if any portion of that Calculation Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual
number of days in that portion of the Calculation Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B)
the actual number of days in that portion of the Calculation Period falling in a non-leap year divided by
365).]

[if Actual/Actual (ICMA) insert: (i) if the Calculation Period (from, and including, the first day of such
period, but excluding, the last) is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during which the
Calculation Period ends, the number of days in such Calculation Period (from, and including, the first
day of such period, but excluding, the last) divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such
Determination Period and (2) the number of Determination Dates (as specified in § 3 (1)) that would
occur in one calendar year; or (ii) if the Calculation Period is longer than the Determination Period
during which the Calculation Period ends, the sum of: (A) the number of days in such Calculation
Period falling in the Determination Period in which the Calculation Period begins divided by the
product of (1) the number of days in such Determination Period and (2) the number of Determination
Dates (as specified in 8§ 3 (1)) and (B) the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the next
Determination Period divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such Determination Period

t The default rate of interest established by law is five percentage points above the basic rate of interest published by

Deutsche Bundesbank from time to time, §8§ 288 paragraph 1, 247 German Civil Code (BGB).
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and (2) the number of Determination Dates (as specified in 8 3 (1)) that would occur in one calendar
year.

"Determination Period" means the period from, and including, a Determination Date to, but
excluding, the next Determination Date.]

[if Actual/365 (Fixed) insert: the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365.]
[if Actual/360 insert: the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360.]

[if 30/360, 360/360 or Bond Basis insert: the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by
360, the number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months
(unless (A) the last day of the Calculation Period is the 31st day of a month but the first day of the
Calculation Period is a day other than the 30th or 31st day of a month, in which case the month that
includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (B) the last day of
the Calculation Period is the last day of the month of February in which case the month of February
shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month).]

[if 30E/360, Eurobond Basis or 30E/360 (ISDA) insert: the number of days in the Calculation Period
divided by 360 (such number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-
day months, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Calculation Period unless, in
the case of the final Calculation Period, the Maturity Date is the last day of the month of February, in
which case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month).]

§4
PAYMENTS

(1) (a) Payment of Principal. Payment of principal in respect of Notes shall be made, subject to
subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its order for credit to the accounts of the
relevant account holders of the Clearing System for subsequent transfer to the Holders.

(b) Payment of Interest. Payment of interest on Notes shall be made, subject to subparagraph
(2), to the Clearing System or to its order for credit to the relevant account holders of the
Clearing System for subsequent transfer to the Holders.

[In the case of interest payable on a Temporary Global Note insert:

Payment of interest on Notes represented by the Temporary Global Note shall be made, subject to
subparagraph (2), to the Clearing System or to its order for credit to the relevant account holders of
the Clearing System, upon due certification as provided in § 1 (3) (b), for subsequent transfer to the
Holders.]

(2) Manner of Payment. Subject to applicable fiscal and other laws and regulations, payments of
amounts due in respect of the Notes shall be made in [insert Specified Currency].

[In the case of TEFRA D Notes insert:

3) United States. For purposes of § 1 (3), "United States" means the United States of America
(including the States thereof and the District of Columbia) and its possessions (including
Puerto Rico, the US. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, Wake Island and Northern
Mariana Islands).]

[(D)] Discharge. The Issuer shall be discharged by payment to, or to the order of, the Clearing
System.

[(3)] Payment Business Day. If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note is not a
Payment Business Day then the Holder shall not be entitled to payment until the next such
day in the relevant place[lf "Unadjusted" is applicable insert: and shall not be entitled to
further interest or other payment in respect of such delay]. For these purposes, "Payment
Business Day" means any day which is a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which
both (i) the Clearing System and (ii) the Trans-European Automated Real-time Gross
settlement Express Transfer system 2 (TARGET?2), or any successor system thereto (the
"TARGET") settle payments.
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[(®)]

[(7)]

@)

)

References to Principal and Interest. Reference in these Terms and Conditions to principal in
respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include, as applicable: the Final Redemption Amount
of the Notes; the Early Redemption Amount of the Notes; [if redeemable early at the option
of the Issuer for other than taxation reasons insert: the Call Redemption Amount of the
Notes;] [if redeemable early at the option of the Holder insert: the Put Redemption
Amount of the Notes;] and any premium and any other amounts which may be payable under
or in respect of the Notes. Reference in these Terms and Conditions to interest in respect of
the Notes shall be deemed to include, as applicable, any Additional Amounts which may be
payable under § 7.

Deposit of Principal and Interest. The Issuer may deposit with the Local Court (Amtsgericht) in
Berlin principal or interest not claimed by Holders within twelve months after the Maturity
Date, even though such Holders may not be in default of acceptance of payment. If and to the
extent that the deposit is effected and the right of withdrawal is waived, the respective claims
of such Holders against the Issuer shall cease.

85
REDEMPTION

Redemption at Final Maturity. Unless previously redeemed in whole or in part or purchased
and cancelled, the Notes shall be redeemed at their Final Redemption Amount on [in the
case of a specified Maturity Date insert such Maturity Date] [in the case of a
Redemption Month insert: the Interest Payment Date falling in [insert Redemption
Month]] (the "Maturity Date"). The Final Redemption Amount in respect of each Note shall
be its principal amount.

Early Redemption for Reasons of Taxation. If as a result of any change in, or amendment to,
the laws or regulations of the Federal Republic of Germany or any political subdivision or
taxing authority thereto or therein affecting taxation or the obligation to pay duties of any kind,
or any change in, or amendment to, an official interpretation or application of such laws or
regulations, which amendment or change is effective on or after the date on which the last
tranche of this series of Notes was issued, the Issuer is required to pay Additional Amounts
(as defined in § 7 herein) on the next succeeding Interest Payment Date (as defined in § 3
(1)), and this obligation cannot be avoided by the use of reasonable measures available to the
Issuer, the Notes may be redeemed, in whole but not in part, at the option of the Issuer, upon
not more than 60 days' nor less than 30 days' prior notice of redemption given to the Fiscal
Agent and, in accordance with § 12 to the Holders, at their Early Redemption Amount (as
defined below), together with interest (if any) accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

However, no such notice of redemption may be given (i) earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date
on which the Issuer would be obligated to pay such Additional Amounts were a payment in respect of
the Notes then due, or (ii) if at the time such notice is given, such obligation to pay such Additional
Amounts does not remain in effect.

Any such notice shall be given in accordance with 8 12. It shall be irrevocable, must specify the date
fixed for redemption and must set forth a statement in summary form of the facts constituting the basis
for the right of the Issuer so to redeem.

[If the Notes are subject to Early Redemption at the Option of the Issuer insert:

®3)
@)

Early Redemption at the Option of the Issuer.

The Issuer may, upon notice given in accordance with clause (b), redeem all or some only of
the Notes on the Call Redemption Date[s] at the Call Redemption Amount[s] set forth below
together with accrued interest, if any, to (but excluding) the Call Redemption Date. [If
Minimum Redemption Amount or Higher Redemption Amount applies insert: Any such
redemption must be of a principal amount equal to [at least [insert Minimum Redemption
Amount]] [insert Higher Redemption Amount].]
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(b)

[(c)

Call Redemption Date[s] Call Redemption Amount[s]
[insert Call Redemption Date(s)] [insert Call Redemption Amount(s)]
[ ] [ ]
[ ] [ ]

[If Notes are subject to Early Redemption at the Option of the Holder insert: The Issuer
may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the subject of the prior exercise
by the Holder thereof of its option to require the redemption of such Note under subparagraph
(4) of this 8 5.]

Notice of redemption shall be given by the Issuer to the Holders of the Notes in accordance with
§ 12. Such notice shall specify:

0] the Series of Notes subject to redemption;

(i) whether such Series is to be redeemed in whole or in part only and, if in part only, the
aggregate principal amount of the Notes which are to be redeemed;

(iii) the Call Redemption Date, which shall be not less than [insert Minimum Notice to
Holders] nor more than [insert Maximum Notice to Holders] [days] [TARGET
Business Days] after the date on which notice is given by the Issuer to the Holders;
and

(iv) the Call Redemption Amount at which such Notes are to be redeemed.

In the case of Notes represented by Global Notes insert: In the case of a partial
redemption of Notes, Notes to be redeemed shall be selected in accordance with the rules of
the relevant Clearing System. [In the case of Notes in NGN form insert: Such partial
redemption shall be reflected in the records of CBL and Euroclear as either a pool factor or a
reduction in principal amount, at the discretion of CBL and Euroclear.]]]

[If the Notes are subject to Early Redemption at the Option of a Holder insert:

[(4)]
@)

Early Redemption at the Option of a Holder.

The Issuer shall, at the option of the Holder of any Note, redeem such Note on the Put
Redemption Date[s] at the Put Redemption Amount[s] set forth below together with accrued
interest, if any, to (but excluding) the Put Redemption Date.

Put Redemption Date[s] Put Redemption Amount[s]
[insert Put Redemption Date(s)] [insert Put Redemption Amount(s)]

[ ] [ ]
[ ] [ ]

The Holder may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the subject of the prior
exercise by the Issuer of its option to redeem such Note under subparagraph (3) of this § 5.

(b)

[G)]

In order to exercise such option, the Holder must, not less than [insert Minimum Notice to
Issuer] nor more than [insert Maximum Notice to Issuer] days before the Put Redemption
Date on which such redemption is required to be made as specified in the Put Notice (as
defined below), submit during normal business hours at the specified office of the Fiscal
Agent a duly completed early redemption notice (the "Put Notice") in the form available from
the specified office of the Fiscal Agent. The Put Notice must specify (i) the principal amount of
the Notes in respect of which such option is exercised, and (ii) the securities identification
number of such Notes, if any. No option so exercised may be revoked or withdrawn. The
Issuer shall only be required to redeem Notes in respect of which such option is exercised
against delivery of such Notes to the Issuer or to its order.]

Early Redemption Amount.

For purposes of subparagraph (2) of this 8 5 [if the Notes are unsubordinated insert: and § 9], the
Early Redemption Amount of a Note shall be its Final Redemption Amount.
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86
FISCAL AGENT [,]JAND] [PAYING AGENTI[S]] [AND CALCULATION AGENT]

(1) Appointment; Specified Offices. The initial Fiscal Agent [[,] [and] initial Paying Agent[s]] [and
the initial Calculation Agent] and their respective initial specified office[s] are:
Fiscal Agent: Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft

Budapester Strasse 1
10787 Berlin
Federal Republic of Germany

[In case of Notes admitted and listed on a German Stock Exchange insert:

(also acting as Paying Agentin [ ])]

[If any Global Note initially representing the Notes is to be deposited with, or a depositary or
common depositary of, any Clearing System other than CBF insert:

[Paying Agent[s]: [ ]

[insert other Paying Agents and specified offices]]

[Calculation Agent: Berlin-Hannoversche Hypothekenbank Aktiengesellschaft

Budapester Strasse 1
10787 Berlin
Federal Republic of Germany]

[insert other Calculation Agent and specified offices]]

The Fiscal Agent [[,] [and] the Paying Agent[s]] [and the Calculation Agent] reserve[s] the right at any
time to change [its] [their] respective specified offices to some other specified office in the same city.

)

(3)

Variation or Termination of Appointment. The Issuer reserves the right at any time to vary or
terminate the appointment of the Fiscal Agent [or any Paying Agent] [or the Calculation
Agent] and to appoint another Fiscal Agent [or additional or other Paying Agents] [or another
Calculation Agent]. The Issuer shall at all times maintain [(i)] a Fiscal Agent [in the case of
Notes listed on a Stock Exchange insert: [,] [and] (ii) so long as the Notes are listed on the
[name of Stock Exchange], a Paying Agent (which may be the Fiscal Agent) with a specified
office in [location of Stock Exchange] and/or in such other place as may be required by the
rules of such stock exchange] [in the case of payments in U.S. dollars insert: and [(iii)] if
payments at or through the offices of all Paying Agents outside the United States (as defined
in 84 hereof) become illegal or are effectively precluded because of the imposition of
exchange controls or similar restrictions on the full payment or receipt of such amounts in
United States dollars, a Paying Agent with a specified office in New York City] [if any
Calculation Agent is to be appointed insert: and [(iv)] a Calculation Agent [if Calculation
Agent is required to maintain a Specified Office in a Required Location insert: with a
specified office located in [insert Required Location]]. Any variation, termination,
appointment or change shall only take effect (other than in the case of insolvency, when it
shall be of immediate effect) after not less than 30 nor more than 45 days' prior notice thereof
shall have been given to the Holders in accordance with § 12.

Agents of the Issuer. The Fiscal Agent [[,] [and] the Paying Agent[s]] [and the Calculation
Agent] act[s] solely as agent[s] of the Issuer and do[es] not have any obligations towards or
relationship of agency or trust to any Holder.

§7
TAXATION

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes shall be made without withholding or
deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of whatever nature imposed or
levied by way of withholding or deduction at source by or on behalf of the Federal Republic of
Germany or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax unless
such withholding or deduction is required by law or pursuant to any agreement between the Issuer
and the United States in any applicable jurisdiction. If such withholding is required by law, the Issuer
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shall pay such additional amounts (the "Additional Amounts") as shall be necessary in order that the
net amounts received by the Holders, after such withholding or deduction shall equal the respective
amounts of principal and interest which would otherwise have been receivable in the absence of such
withholding or deduction; except that no such Additional Amounts shall be payable on account of any
taxes or duties:

(a) that qualify as German Kapitalertragsteuer (including Abgeltungsteuer, as well as including
church tax, if any) to be deducted or withheld pursuant to the German Income Tax Act, even if
the deduction or withholding has to be made by the Issuer or its representative, and the
German Solidarity Surcharge (Solidaritatszuschlag) or any other tax which may substitute the
German Kapitalertragsteuer or Solidaritatszuschlag, as the case may be; or

(b) if payments are made to, or to a third party on behalf of, a Holder who is liable to such taxes
or other duties, in respect of the Notes by reason of some connection of such Holder with the
Federal Republic of Germany or a member state of the European Union other than (i) the
mere holding of such Note or (ii) the mere receipt of principal, interest or other amount in
respect of the Notes; or

(© if the Notes are presented for payment more than 30 days after the due date of the respective
payment of principal or interest or, if the full amount of the moneys payable is duly provided
only at a later date, the date on which notice to that effect is duly given to the Holders in accordance
with § 12; except to the extent that the relevant Holder would have been entitled to such
additional amounts on presenting the same for payment on or before expiry of such period for
30 days; or

(d) if these taxes or duties are deducted or withheld pursuant to the European Council Directive
2003/48/EC or any other directive on the taxation of savings income, any law implementing or
complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive or any arrangements
entered into between member states and certain other third countries and territories in
connection with such Directive; or

(e) in respect of the Notes on which an amount is only deducted or withheld because the relevant
Note has been collected for the relevant Holder by a banking institution in Federal Republic of
Germany, which has kept or keeps such Note in safe custody for such Holder;

) in respect of the Notes on which any such taxes or duties are imposed or levied otherwise
than by deduction or withholding from any payment of principal or interest;

(9) imposed on or in respect of any payment made in respect of a Note pursuant to Sections
1471 to 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("FATCA"), any treaty,
law, regulation or other official guidance enacted by the Federal Republic of Germany
implementing FATCA, or any agreement between the Issuer and the United States or any
authority thereof implementing FATCA; or

(h) or in case of any combination of paragraphs (a) — (g).

§8
PRESENTATION PERIOD AND PRESCRIPTION

The presentation period provided in § 801 paragraph 1, sentence 1 German Civil Code (BGB) is
reduced to ten years for the Notes. Claims shall be prescribed according to the provisions set out in
§ 801 BGB.

[In the case of unsubordinated Notes insert:

§9
EVENTS OF DEFAULT

(1) Events of default. Each Holder shall be entitled to declare his Notes due and demand
immediate redemption thereof at the Early Redemption Amount (as described in §5),
together with accrued interest (if any) to the date of repayment, in the event that

(a) the Issuer fails to pay principal or interest within 30 days from the relevant due date; or
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(b)

(©)
(d)

()

the Issuer fails duly to perform any other obligation arising from the Notes which failure is not
capable of remedy or, if such failure is capable of remedy, such failure continues for more
than 45 days after the Fiscal Agent has received notice thereof from a Holder; or

the Issuer announces its inability to meet its financial obligations or ceases its payments; or

the Issuer stops or suspends payment of its debts generally or announces such stop or
suspension, or a court opens insolvency proceedings against the Issuer, such proceedings
are instituted and have not been discharged or stayed within 60 days, or the Issuer applies for
or institutes such proceedings or takes any action for a readjustment or deferment of its
obligations generally or makes a general assignment or composition with or for the benefit of
its creditors or declares a moratorium in respect of its indebtedness; or

the Issuer goes into liquidation unless this is done in connection with a merger, consolidation
or other form of combination with another company and such company assumes all
obligations contracted by the Issuer, in connection with the Notes.

The right to declare Notes due shall terminate if the situation giving rise to such right has been cured
before the right is exercised.

(2)

(1)

(@)
(b)

(€)

Notice. Any notice, including any notice declaring Notes due, in accordance with
subparagraph (1) shall be made by means of a written declaration in the German or English
language to the specified office of the Fiscal Agent together with proof that such Holder at the
time of such notice is a holder of the relevant Notes by means of a certificate of his Custodian
(as defined in § 13(3)) or in other appropriate manner.]

§[10]
SUBSTITUTION

Substitution. The Issuer may, without the consent of the Holders, if no payment of principal or
interest on any of the Notes is in default, at any time substitute for the Issuer any Affiliate as
defined below) of the Issuer as principal debtor in respect of all obligations arising from or in
connection with this issue (the "Substitute Debtor") provided that:

the Substitute Debtor assumes all obligations of the Issuer in respect of the Notes;

the Issuer and the Substitute Debtor have obtained all necessary authorisations and may
transfer to the Fiscal Agent in the currency required hereunder and without being obligated to
deduct or withhold any taxes or other duties of whatever nature levied by the country in which
the Substitute Debtor or the Issuer has its domicile or tax residence, all amounts required for
the fulfilment of the payment obligations arising under the Notes;

the Substitute Debtor has agreed to indemnify and hol